H Board of Directors Meeting

Alexandria Transit Company

March 8, 2023 @ 5:30pm

Meeting Held at City Hall, Council Workroom, 301 King St., Alexandria, VA 22314 and

Held Electronically - Livestream on ZOOM and Facebook Live

ITEM DESCRIPTION PAGE # PRESENTER
#1 Call to Order, Welcome, and Public Comment N/A Mr. Kaplan
#2 Consideration of Approval Meeting Minutes

a) ATC Board of Directors Meeting — February 8, 2023 2-5 All
#3 Board Member Announcements, Reports & Business Items |
a) Chair's Report 6-7 Mr. Kaplan
b) T&ES Report Ms. Orr
c) Others Al
#4 General Manager’s Report
a) Managers Updates & Discussion Items 8-9 Mr. Baker
#5 Financial Reports
a) Financial Report
b) Balance Sheet
¢) Summary Income Statement 10-15 Mr. Ryder
d) Budget vs. Actual
e) Budget Forecast
#6 Planning Reports
a) Low-No Grant Application Resolution 16-20 Mr. Barna
b) Ridership Update
c) Draft FY 2024 — FY 2029 ATC Transit Development Plan
#7 Next Meeting Date & Adjournment
The next regular meeting of the Alexandria Transit Company Board of 21 All

Directors is scheduled for Wednesday, April 12, 2023




ATC Board Agenda Detail SN

O,
5% %,
Item #: 2a & 2,
i . . L] Z
Item Title: Meeting Minutes—February 8, 2023 !@@’h
Contact: Beth Reveles, Secretary to the Board e -
Board Action: Consideration of Approval DASH

Alexandria Transit Company (ATC)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES
February 8, 2023

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Alexandria Transit Company was held at 5:30 pm on Wednesday,
February 8, 2023, at the DASH facility and was also available electronically. A recording of the meeting was made
and is available upon request.

Board members present in person: David Kaplan, Hillary Orr, Murat Omay, Jesse O’Connell, Kendel Taylor, Ajashu
Thomas, Brandi Collins, Matt Harris

Board members participating electronically: Steve Klejst participated from Charlotte, NC due to business travel
Board members absent: Linda Bailey

Staff members present: Josh Baker, Martin Barna, Kaitlyn Beisel, Beth Reveles, Edward Ryder, Joseph Quansah,
Swinda Carcamo, Raymond Mui, Stephanie Salzone, Camille Mendez

Other attendees: Samuel Nixon

Board Meeting
Agenda Item #1

#1 — Call to Order, Welcome and Public Comment
Chair David Kaplan called the meeting to order and asked for the calling of the role.
Chair Kaplan opened the meeting to public comment.
Samuel Nixon asked about DASH’s long-term service plans, within the next three, five, and 10 years, as it relates to
serving the residences of the senior population and what measures DASH is taking to improve accessibility and
amenities at bus stops.
Chair Kaplan asked for Mr. Nixon’s contact information so DASH staff could follow-up with him regarding his
questions. He informed Mr. Nixon that a presentation on DASH bus stop amenities and access would take place
during this evening’s meeting and that it was a priority for him as well as for other members of the Board.
As there were no other speakers, the Chair closed public comment.
Agenda Item #2 — Consideration of Approval of Meeting Minutes

#2a — ATC Board of Directors Meeting — January 11, 2023
Chair Kaplan called for a motion to approve the January 11 minutes and asked if there were any corrections,
revisions, or amendments. He had one revision to the minutes with regards to Jim Durham’s public comment. The

correct acronym for the Department of Community and Human Services is DCHS.

A motion was made by Jesse O’Connell and seconded by Hillary Orr to approve the minutes. There was no further
discussion, and the motion carried. Matt Harris abstained.

2




Agenda Item #3 — Board Member Announcements, Reports & Business Items
#3a — Chair’'s Report & Retreat Recap/Debrief

Chair Kaplan reminded the Board that the Stockholders meeting was scheduled for February 14 at 6:30 pm at City
Hall in Council Chambers. The Stockholders will be voting on the Board slate, the independent auditor, and the
remainder of the time will be used as a DASH work session. He asked that Board members either attend in person
or virtually. He asked that they inform him or the Board secretary if they plan to attend so he may recognize them
during the meeting.

The Chair announced that he, Josh Baker, and Hillary Orr had a very productive meeting with Yon Lambert, Emily
Baker, and the City Manager. The City Manager rides DASH and is pleased with the way DASH is operated and is
comfortable with the management of the system. Partnership opportunities were discussed in particular with school
transportation needs and the possibility of DASH playing a more significant role in providing transportation for
middle and high school students. Fare free was discussed and upcoming FTA opportunities for capital funding. In
the end, the Chair felt the Manager was a strong supporter and advocate for transit and what DASH does.

The Chair had an opportunity to participate in a webinar which was co-sponsored by NVTC and the Coalition for
Smarter Growth on “*What's up with the Bus in NoVa?”. He mentioned that Director of Planning and Marketing
Martin Barna was one of the speakers and presented on the successes of the New DASH Network. There was also
a speaker from WMATA who spoke on their bus reinvention study. There were speakers from Fairfax County that
spoke about their new service implemented at WMATA stations on the Silver Line. In the end, he concluded that
bus service is no longer considered the “stepchild” of rail transit. Across the region, bus service is now being
considered as a solution to moving people.

Chair Kaplan recognized the recent death of WMATA employee Robert Cunningham who was shot at the Potomac
Avenue Metro Station while trying to intervene an armed gunman. He asked for a moment of silence in honor of
Mr. Cunningham’s passing.

#3b — T&ES Report

Transportation Deputy Director Hillary Orr provided a review of her written report which was shared with the Board
in advance of the meeting.

Ms. Orr explained that WMATA will have public hearings on their FY24 budget beginning in March; therefore, a
draft letter was provided to the Board for discussion and consideration of approval.

Matt Harris stated that the letter was well written and serves its purpose. He moved to adopt the letter. Jesse
O’Connell seconded the motion. After some discussion, the motion passed unanimously.

Chair Kaplan asked if it would be appropriate to include WMATA service fare collection and enforcement in the
letter. Matt Harris felt it was not congruent with the tone of the letter and should not be included at this time but
perhaps in a future letter. Jesse O’Connell concurred with Matt Harris’ opinion. He also agreed with Mr. Kaplan’s
thoughts and suggested a second separate letter be sent to WMATA to request a briefing with them around their
discussion of going fare free.

#3c — Others

Chair Kaplan asked if there were any other announcements from the Board. He mentioned that the Commission on
Aging would be holding their meeting at the DASH facility tomorrow.

Agenda Item #4 — General Manager’'s Reports
#4a — GM Updates (Retreat Debrief, Collective Bargaining & Transit Equity Day Video)

General Manager Josh Baker mentioned that Transit Equity Day was on February 4 and is the birthdate of civil

3




rights icon Rosa Parks. She led efforts to make transit equitable for all, and that work is ongoing. Last fall DASH
participated at a George Mason University’s electronic vehicle display sponsored by the Sierra Club. As a result of
DASH'’s presence, the Sierra Club chose to partner with DASH for their Transit Equity Day video featuring bus
Operator Camille Mendez. He played the video for the Board. Mr. Baker introduced Ms. Mendez and thanked her for
her participation in the video and her service to DASH. He presented her with an Award of Excellence and gifted
her several DASH items.

Mr. Baker thanked the Board for attending the recent retreat, and reviewed notes from the retreat along with any
follow-up items.

e Mr. Baker stated that he would reach out to Lonnie Rich to discuss an annual disclosure agreement that
Board members would need to sign. This agreement would essentially state the signatory’s understanding
of any conflicts of interest to ensure compliance while serving on the Board.

e Hillary Orr stated that the assistant City attorney offers annual training for boards and commissions
regarding FOIA and conflicts of interest. Mr. Kaplan mentioned that he would like Lonnie Rich to review the
assistant attorney’s training materials to ensure they are compliant with DASH’s unique structure.

¢ Murat Omay and Steve Klejst volunteered to develop a DASH strategic plan in collaboration with Mr. Baker.
They agreed to present their ideas to the Board for consideration for further action.

e Mr. Kaplan stated that the Board member’s policy and rules handbook was very outdated and would
eventually need to be updated. It's important to have it updated especially for newer Board members so
they know what is expected of them.

e Mr. Omay brought up training and development workforce targets, goals, and quality.

Mr. Baker announced that the first collective bargaining meeting has been scheduled with ATU for late March. He
explained that the labor agreement is between the union and Transit Management of Alexandria, which is the
employer of the bus Operators. The collective bargaining agreement only includes the bus Operators. First Transit

representatives and their labor council will be involved in the negotiations. He will keep the Board informed on its
progress.

Agenda Item #5 — Financial Reports
#5a — Financial Report
#5b — Balance Sheet
#5c — Summary Income Statement
#5d — Budget vs. Actual
#5e — Budget Forecast

Mr. Baker provided a review of Director for Finance & Administration Edward Ryder’s reports which were shared
with the Board in advance of the meeting.

The following were highlighted:
e YTD deficit: ($1,380,092), year-end projection ($910,128)
e Forthcoming City supplemental appropriation process
e Deficit causes: fuel/lubricants, parts, low-performing ad revenue

Kendel Taylor asked for a proposal for what steps would be taken if the City cannot cover the $910k deficit at the
end of FY23. Mr. Baker offered to bring two or three scenarios to the March Board meeting for the Board to review.

For the March Board meeting, Mr. Baker will provide photos that display bus advertisements that cover the
windows. He will also provide an example of what the view is from inside a bus with the windows covered by
bringing one of the Line 35 buses to City Hall.




Agenda Item #6 — Planning Reports
#6a — Ridership Update

Director of Planning & Marketing Martin Barna reviewed this portion of his report which was shared with the Board
in advance of the meeting.

#6b — Bus Stop Inventory Summary
Mr. Barna reviewed the inventory summary which was shared with the Board in advance of the meeting.

Agenda Item #7— Next Meeting Date & Adjournment

A final motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Matt Harris and seconded by Ajashu Thomas. A vote was
called, and the motion was approved unanimously.

The next regular meeting of the Alexandria Transit Company Board of Directors is scheduled for March 8, 2023, at
5:30 pm at the City Hall Council Workroom and via Zoom/Facebook Live.

Minutes respectfully submitted by:
Beth Reveles

Secretary to the Board

Alexandria Transit Company




A TRANS)

ATC Board Agenda Detail & %

K %
Item #: 3b Z 4 %
Item Title: T&ES Report !@@
Contact: Hillary Orr, Deputy Director, Transportation e
Board Action: FYI DASH
City Budget

On February 28, City Manager James Parajon presented City Council with a proposed operating and capital budget
for Fiscal Year (FY) 2024. The FY 2024 budget adoption is scheduled for Wednesday, May 3. The proposed budget
includes a General Fund Base Operating Budget of $881.1 million (beginning July 1), as well as a $2.39 billion 10-
year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for FY 2024 — 2033.

As was the case in FY 2023, the budget focus aligns with those that have been in place for several years —
strategies and policies that underscore financial management; strategic investments in current and future needs;
and support for new, creative ways to deliver essential services to maintain the health, safety, and quality of life for
all Alexandrians.

The project funding in the Transportation and Transit CIP section increased by $0.4 million from the FY23-32
budget. The CIP budget includes $4.8 million to support DASH Bus Fleet Replacement and Electrification for FY24,
$29.6 million for DASH operating through FY33, and $100,000 to support the Department of Rail and Public
Transit, Regional Envision Route 7 Planning Study.

Safe Roads for All Grant

In June 2022, the City applied for the Safe Streets and Roads for All Program to perform safety audits and develop
conceptual design alternatives at seven high-crash intersections around the City. Last month, the City was informed
by the US Department of Transportation (USDOT) that the City's application was selected for award.

SS4A is a new program created by the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law that funds projects that prevent roadway
deaths and severe injuries. Staff will be working with USDOT in the coming months to execute the grant
agreement, establish expectations for project administration, and begin the project.

The following intersections are included for improvements and are located along the DASH routes shown in
parentheses:
e S Van Dorn St and S Pickett St (30, 32, 35)
S Van Dorn St and Edsall Rd (30, 35)
Seminary Rd and Mark Center Ave (35, 36AB)
Seminary Rd and Kenmore Ave/Library Ln (36AB)
King St and Dawes Ave
King Street and 28™ Street (31, 35)
King Street and Park Center Drive (31, 35)

COG Roadway Safety Grant Application
Earlier this month, Staff applied for the FY 2024 Regional Roadway Safety Program through MWCOG for up to

$80,000 in technical assistance to evaluate lighting needs to enhance pedestrian safety in key areas. The project
will evaluate roadway lighting best practices, identify, and evaluate priority areas for lighting needs, and develop
recommendations for lighting improvements. Recommendations are expected to be implemented through future
safety projects. It is expected that areas near high-ridership transit stops will be prioritized for evaluation due to
their pedestrian generation and safety needs.

Duke Street in Motion

The next Duke Street In Motion Advisory Group will take place on Thursday, March 16th at 6:30PM at 3000
Business Center Drive (DASH Facility) to discuss the engagement plan, progress on busway designs, and the
development of a recommendation from the Advisory Group.




State Legislative Update
The regular 2023 Virginia Legislative Session adjourned on Saturday, February 25. Bills that may be of interest to

the Board include:

e HB 2330 Assault and battery; public transportation service vehicle operators
o Makes it a Class 1 misdemeanor for a person to commit a battery against another knowing or
having reason to know that such individual is an operator of a vehicle operated by a public
transportation service who is engaged in the performance of his duties. The bill requires the
sentence of such person, upon conviction, to include a term of confinement of 15 days in jail, two
days of which is a mandatory minimum.

e SB 1326/HB 2338 Transit Ridership Incentive Program
o Directs CTB to use up to 30 percent of available funds of TRIP to support local, regional, and state

entities in improving the accessibility of transit bus passenger facilities and transitioning public
transit bus fleets and infrastructure to zero-emission bus fleets and infrastructure.




ATC Board Agenda Detail fo@ s,
Item #: 4a ¥ 9 7
Item Title: Manager Updates !@@
Contact: Josh Baker, General Manager = —
Board Action: FYI DASH

February Board meeting public comment/concern and staff follow-up summary:

CUSTOMER NAME REQUEST/INQUIRY ACTION TAKEN

Mr. Nixon asked what DASH was doing Director of Planning & Marketing Martin Barna
Samuel Nixon to improve transit accessibility for sent Mr. Nixon an email and provided him with

seniors. information on the ways in which DASH is
providing bus service that is useful and
accessible for older residents. He included a
chart and maps that show the areas with more
senior residents and a map of DASH service
with warmer colors displaying the frequent-all-
day routes.

City Manager’s FY24 Budget

On February 28, 2023, City Manager Jim Parajon presented the Alexandria City Council with a proposed Fiscal Year
(FY) 2024 General Fund Operating Budget of $881.1 million, which represents an increase of 5.0% over the current
year. The proposed budget includes $258.7 million in operating funds for the Alexandria City Public Schools, a $9.9
million (or 4.0%) increase over FY 2023 funding. The budget proposal also includes significant capital investments
for stormwater management infrastructure; educational facilities; and maintenance of existing City assets and
facilities, totaling $2.40 billion over 10 years in Alexandria’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP).

DASH staff are currently reviewing the budget proposal and comparing it against submittals during the budget
process. A preliminary review shows that the DASH budget request as submitted has been funded with the
exception of the “administrative reduction” being exercised and an additional $145k of reductions. It is unclear the
source of the additional reductions and staff are awaiting further clarification from the Office of Management and
Budget. The GM anticipates the ability to resolve these reductions through administrative adjustments in his revised
budget proposal to the Board.

The revised GM'’s budget will be presented to the Board at the April 12, 2023, meeting.

The following actions are recommended to the Board to ensure adequate opportunity for Council deliberations to
any changes to the proposed budget:

1. Consider issuing a letter of support and thanks to the City Manager and Council for funding the core
services of DASH and continuing to prioritize transit in Alexandria.

2. Request a budget question be issued by Council as to the costs associated with further implementation of
New DASH Network improvements as called for in the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan.

3. Itis recommended that based on the City’s budget calendar, the ATC Board consider the April meeting be
moved up to April 5, 2023, to allow adequate time for any subsequent communications to Council for the
Add/Delete process.




Update on Trolley Bus Incident

The internal investigation into the incident which occurred on February 23, 2023 is ongoing. Once completed a
report will be distributed to the Board of Directors. Any discussion pertaining to the incident and report will take
place at the April meeting.

Electric Bus Recall

New Flyer of America has issued a Motor Vehicle Safety Recall pertaining to liquid accumulation in the Energy
Storage System (ESS) enclosures on certain buses operated by DASH. The four (4) buses affected by this recall
have been taken out of service for inspection and will not be returned to service until certified as safe by DASH and
New Flyer technicians.

A regular inspection process will also be developed that exceeds the manufacturer's recommendations prior to
returning the buses to service.

A fix to the defect is pending and will be implemented immediately upon release by the Manufacturer.

Collective Bargaining
The initial meeting between the Union and TMA/DASH representatives will take place March 21, 2023.

Bus Advertising
In a follow-up to the previous month's meeting and at the request of the board, examples of window

advertisements are provided. Additionally, a DASH bus with a window wrap on it will be available to the Board
outside of City Hall to look at if desired.




ATC Board Agenda Detail SEEINeC,

AV %
Item #: 5a ey 7,
Item Title: Financial Report (@E%
Contact: Edward Ryder, Director of Finance & Administration BASH

Board Action: FYI/Discussion

Financial Results for the Month Ended January 31, 2023

In January, ATC experienced a monthly deficit of ($196,537) and monthly year-to-date deficit of ($1,380,092), and
a projected year-end deficit of ($939,135).

Internal Options to Address the Projected Deficit

At ATC's February Board Meeting, Staff were asked for internal options to address the projected deficit should
supplemental funding from the City not be provided.

We have identified a series of service cuts that would be necessary if we were asked to address the forecasted
budget deficit for FY 2024. If implemented, this scenario would undercut many of the key benefits of the ATV/New
DASH Network by catastrophically reducing DASH services, particularly impacting the number of frequent, all-day
routes, and dramatically scaling back off-peak and weekend service on many routes so that almost all run only
once every 60 minutes.

A summary of these service reductions:

e All commuter-oriented peak service is reduced to hourly on Lines 102, 103, & 104.

e Line 30 improvements that were implemented in 2022 are eliminated.

e Major reductions to the King Street Trolley service (just before the summer months when Trolley ridership
is highest due to tourism)

e Major reductions to Line 31 such that the service would no longer meet the threshold for “frequent, all-
day” service and would make the connections between West End and Old Town much less convenient and
reliable.

e Major reductions to midday, evening, and weekend service on most routes which are more likely to carry
an adverse impact on disadvantaged communities.

e Major reductions to Lines 33 and 34 service to Potomac Yard Metro Station that would be implemented one
month before the opening of the new station and the reopening of the Yellow Line.

e These service cuts would lead to a reduction in force of at least 21 full-time bus operators.

Based on CBA requirements, bid preparation timeline, and public notification requirements, changes of this
magnitude could not be implemented until April 1, 2023.

These cuts would be catastrophic and amount to an equivalent of an annualized reduction of $3,760,000.

10




DASH FY 2023

MID-YEAR REDUCTION SCENARIOS

Priority Order

(1=top Line # Areas Served Proposed Improvement Net Annual Cost
priority)
FY 2023 DASH Reduction Scenarios
Braddock Metro, Cameron
1 Line 104 Mills Rd, Parkfairfax, Reduce weekday peak service from every 30 minutes to every 60 minutes ($40,000)
Pentagon
King St. Metro, Janneys Lane,
2 Line 102 Seminary Road, Southern Reduce weekday peak service from every 30 minutes to every 60 minutes ($40,000)
Towers, Mark Center
King St. Metro, Janneys Lane,
3 Line 103 Seminary Road, Southern Reduce weekday peak service from every 30 minutes to every 60 minutes ($40,000)
Towers, Mark Center
. Eisenhower Avenue, . . . .
Lines 32,33 & . Shorten or discontinue selected evening trips on weekdays and/or weekends
4 Potomac Yard, Arlandria, Del . L . ($20,000)
34 based on lowest ridership impact (Exact trips TBD)
Ray, Old Town
Undo the FY 2023 supplemental improvements on Line 30. Half of weekday
) Duke Street, Old Town, peak trips shortened to start/end at King Street Metro instead of serving
5 Line 30 ) ) ($180,000)
South Van Dorn Street Braddock Road Metro via Old Town. Half of weekend trips shortened to
Landmark Mall instead of serving South Van Dorn Street.
King Street Reduce King St. Trolley service to run once every 30-35 minutes and to end at
6 old Town 1 ($140,000)
Trolley 9pm instead of 11pm.
Reduce Line 31 peak service from every 10 minutes to every 15 minutes.
7 Line 31 NVCC, King Street, Old Town| Reduce midday and weekend headways from every 15 minutes to every 30 ($290,000)
minutes. Reduce early morning and late night service.
. Potomac Yard, Arlandria, Del [Reduce midday and Saturday service on Lines 33 & 34 from every 30 minutes to
8 Lines 33 & 34 ) ($100,000)
Ray, Old Town every 60 minutes
. Eisenhower Avenue, South . . .
9 Line 32 R . Reduce weekday service from every 30 minutes to every 60 minutes ($90,000)
Pickett Street, Ripley Street
Total Potential Service Reductions ($940,000)

11




ATC Board Agenda Detail

o
Item #: 5b L/ ,ﬂ @?’&
Item Title: Balance Sheet ?@%
Contact: Edward Ryder, Director of Finance & Administration
Board Action: FYI/Discquion DASH
ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY
Balance Sheet as of Jan 31, 2023

ASSETS

Cash - City of Alexandria Pooled (1,476,524)

Cash - Payroll Account (1,767,747)

Due from Other Governments 183,907

Receivables 353,552

Prepaid Expenditures 380,966

Parts and Supplies Inventory 973,992

Capital Assets 68,018,776

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (30,988,759)

TOTAL ASSETS 35,678,163

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 161,082

Payroll Liabilities 23,265

Accrued Vacation 1,190,371

Deferred Revenue (CARES Act) -

Total Liabilities 1,374,718

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 37,030,017

Unrestricted (2,726,572)

Total Net Position 34,303,445

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 35,678,163

This statement is unaudited and prepared for the sole use of management and the

Board of Directors of ATC.

12




NTRANS/,.

ATC Board Agenda Detail o %,

Item #: 5¢c A >,

Item Title: Summary Income Statement @@&

Contact: Edward Ryder, Director of Finance & Administration Moo T

Board Action: FYI/Discussion DASH

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY
Summary Income Statement for the Month Ended Janury 31, 2023
FY2023 FY2023 Annual
Actual Budget Variance Projected Budget Variance

REVENUES:
Passenger Revenue 84,574 - 84,574 84,574 - 84,574
Charter Revenue 9,445 - 9,445 9,445 - 9,445
Advertising Revenue 24,763 168,200 (143,437) 52,989 336,400 (283,411)
Miscellaneous Revenue 60,900 35,000 25,900 83,017 60,000 23,017
Total Operating Revenue 179,682 203,200 (23,518) 230,024 396,400 (166,376)
Virginia TRIP Program - - B 2,829,644 2,829,644
City Contribution - King Street Trolley 632,919 632,917 2 1,085,004 1,085,000 4
City Contribution - Regular Subsidy 14,046,354 14,046,351 3 24,079,464 24,079,459 5
Total Revenue 14,858,955 14,882,468 v 5 28,224,136 28,390,503 9
EXPENDITURES:
Operations 8,943,063 9,029,194 86,131 16,136,932 16,159,400 22,468
Maintenance 4,405,807 3,545,187 (860,620) 7,212,620 6,242,392 (970,228)
Administration 3,086,714 3,207,012 120,299 5,623,195 5,791,790 168,595
Capital Outlay - - - 190,525 190,000 (525)
Total Expenditures 16,435,584 15,781,393 - (654,190) 29,163,272 28,383,582 (779,690)
Net Surplus (Deficit) (1,576,629) (898,926)  (654,185) (939,135) 6,921 (779,681)

This statement is unaudited and prepared for the sole use of management and the Board
of Directors of ATC.

13




ATC Board Agenda Detail
Item #: 5d
Item Title:
Contact:
Board Action:

Budget vs. Actual
Edward Ryder, Director of Finance & Administration
FYI/Discussion

OQ\ATRANS/,.

Summary Income Statement for the Month Ended Janury 31, 2023
With Application of I-395 Reimbursements

Passenger Revenue 6,402 - 6,402 84,574 - 84,574 84,574 - 84,574
Other Charter Revenue 500 - 500 9,445 - 9,445 9,445 - 9,445
Advertising Revenue - - - 24,763 168,200 (143,437) 52,989 336,400 (283,411)
Miscellaneous Revenue 7,535 5,000 2,535 60,900 35,000 25,900 83,017 60,000 23,017
[TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 14,437 5000 9,437 179,682 203,200 (23,518) 230,024 396,400  (166,376)
Virginia TRIP Program - - - - - - 2,829,644 2,829,644 -
City Contribution - Regular Subsidy 2,006,622 2,006,622 0| 14,046,354 14,046,351 3 24,079,464 24,079,459 5
City Contribution - King Street Trolley 90,417 90,417 0 632,919 632,917 2 1,085,004 1,085,000 4
[TOTAL REVENUE | 2111476 | 2,102038[  9,438| 14,858,955 | 14,882468|  (23513)| 28224136 | 28,390,503 | (166,367)
OPERATIONS
Wages - O 854,021 789,363 (64,658)| 5,120,053 6,079,972 959,920 9,705,026 10,924,400 1,219,374
Overtime - O 179,629 82,837 (96,792)| 1,506,994 621,278  (885,716) 2,502,619 1,118,300 (1,384,319)
Fringe Benefits - O 163,656 237,137 73,482 1,204,151 1,229,278 25,127 1,979,486 2,145,100 165,614
Payroll Taxes - O 81,880 67,044 (14,836) 505,552 502,833 (2,719) 847,852 905,100 57,248
Retirement Contributions - O 81,932 70,111 (11,821) 536,713 525,833 (10,880) 989,026 946,500 (42,526)
[Total Operations Personnel | 1,361,118 1,246,493  (114,625)] 8,873,463 8,959,194 85,731 16,024,010 16,039,400 15,390
Operating Materials and Supplies 761 3,333 2,572 16,650 23,333 6,683 33,763 40,000 6,237
Operator Training 2,714 2,790 75 26,341 19,529 (6,812) 36,583 33,478 (3,105)
Training and Travel - O 602 3,877 3,275 26,609 27,138 529 42,576 46,522 3,946
[TOTAL OPERATIONS EXPENDITURES | 1,365,195 | 1,256,493 | (108,703)] 8,943,063 | 9,029,194 | 86,131 16,136,932 | 16,159,400 | 22,468
MAINTENANCE
Wages - M 166,749 180,311 13,562 1,224,415 1,352,333 127,919 2,250,783 2,434,200 183,417
Overtime - M 7,198 9,126 1,928 57,388 68,444 11,056 110,188 123,200 13,012
Fringe Benefits - M 33,666 28,711 (4,955) 195,585 215,333 19,748 356,168 387,600 31,432
Payroll Taxes - M 14,120 14,311 191 97,572 107,333 9,762 180,372 193,200 12,828
Retirement Contributions - M 13,779 14,970 1,191 95,634 112,278 16,644 181,967 202,100 20,133
[Total Maintenance Personnel [ 235512 247,430 11,918 | 1,670,594 1,855,722 185,128 3,079,479 3,340,300 260,821
Fuel & Lubricants 176,666 123,474 (53,192)| 1,477,294 864,320  (612,974) 2,303,672 1,481,692 (821,980)
Repair Parts & Supplies 69,945 66,283 (3,662) 807,957 463,983  (343,973) 1,161,082 795,400  (365,682)
Maintenance Services 18,798 22,917 4,118 162,577 160,417 (2,161) 269,697 275,000 5,303
Building Maintenance 36,516 26,359 (10,157) 285,830 189,078 (96,752) 385,381 330,000 (55,381)
Training and Travel - M - 1,667 1,667 1,556 11,667 10,111 13,309 20,000 6,691
TOTAL MAINTENANCE I | | I I I I
EXPENDITURES 537,438 488,130 (49,308)| 4,405,807 | 3,545,187 | (860,620, 7,212,620 | 6,242,392 | _ (970,228)
ADMINISTRATION
Wages - A 163,543 172,136 8,593 1,196,363 1,273,585 77,222 2,237,987 2,397,900 159,913
Fringe Benefits - A 17,779 23,201 5,422 149,827 171,122 21,295 312,900 333,290 20,390
Payroll Taxes - A 12,639 13,168 529 88,211 97,429 9,218 175,061 183,600 8,539
Retirement Contributions - A 13,269 13,732 463 90,032 102,351 12,319 173,362 192,100 18,738
[Total Administrative Personnel | 207230] 222,237] 1s,008 1,524,433 | 1,644,487 | 120,054 2,899,310 | 3,106,890 207,580
Insurance 76,986 78,483 1,498 537,399 549,383 11,984 929,816 941,800 11,984
Professional Services 56,147 85,717 29,570 566,684 600,017 33,333 1,038018 1,028,600 (9,418)
Utilities 33,755 27,083 (6,672) 224,270 189,583 (34,687) 359,687 325,000 (34,687)
Telecommunications 9,194 9,667 472 65,592 67,667 2,075 113,925 116,000 2,075
Printing & Advertising 1,378 5,883 4,505 48,271 41,183 (7,087) 77,687 70,600 (7,087)
Training, Travel, Events 235 4,167 3,932 22,133 29,167 7,034 40,965 50,000 9,035
Office Equipment and Supplies 2,751 8,758 6,007 44,000 61,308 17,309 87,791 105,100 17,309
Employee Recognition 166 4,500 4,334 13,907 13,250 (657) 14,205 14,000 (205)
Dues and Subscriptions 1,567 1,567 - 8,379 10,967 2,588 16,212 18,800 2,588
Grant Local Match 15,972 = (15,972) 31,646 = (31,646) 45,578 15,000 (30,578)
[TOTAL ADMIN EXPENDITURES | 40s5381| 448062 |  42682| 3,086,714 | 3,207,012 | 120,299 5,623,195 5,791,790 | 168,595
CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-CIP)
Computer and Office Equipment - - - - - - 48,232 60,000 11,768
Maintenance Equipment - - - - - - - - -
Other Equipment Investments - - - - - - 142,293 130,000 (12,293)
[TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-QIP) | = |l ] = ] -] . 190,525 | 190,000 | (525)
[TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES | 2,308,014 | 2,192,685 | (115329)] 16435584 | 15,781,393 | (654,190)] 29,163,272 | 28,383,582 | (779,690)
14 [nersureLUs (oEFicT) | (196537)] (90,647)| (105,891) (1576629  (898,926)| (677,703) (939,135)] 6,921 (946,057)




ATC Board Agenda Detail e ﬁ <,
Item #: Se K/ >,
Item Title: Budget Forecast @@&
Contact: Edward Ryder, Director of Finance & Administration Moo T

Board Action: FYI/Discussion

Summary Income Statement for the Month Ended Janury 31, 2023

With Application of 1-355

Description

Jul

Sep*

Oct

Apr

FY 23
Projected

FY 23 Budget [Variance

Passenger Revenue 8591 65,005 - - 576 - 6,202 - - - - - 84,573 - 24574
Other Charter Revenue 7.317 so3 1,125 - - - 500 - - - - - 5,335 - 5,445
Advertising Revenue - 2,205 - - - 20358 - 11,320 1,727 1727 11,727 1727 52559 336400 (283.411)
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,812 12,958 15,677 12,390 1,000 9,929 7,535 2,423 4423 4423 4423 4423 23,017 60,000 23,017
[TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 17,320 86,870 16,802 12,390 1576 30,287 14,437 15,743 6,150 6,150 16,150 6,150 230,024 356,400 (166,376))
Virginia TRIP Program = = = = - - - - - 1,131,858 - 1,697,786 2825633 28256494
City Contribution - Regular Subsidy 2,006,622 | 2,006,622 | 2,006,622 | 2,006,622 | 2,006,622 2,006,622 | 2,006,622 | 2,006,622 | 20065622| 2006622| 2006622 | 2006622 23075463 24075455 s
City Contribution - King Street Trolley 50,317 50,417 50,217 50,217 50,217 50,417 50,217 S0, 417 S0.417 50417 S0.417 50417 1,085,003 1,085 000 2
[foTAaL REVENUE 2,114,359 | 2.183909 | 2,113,841 | 2,109,429 | 2,098,615 2127326 | 2.111.a76| 23132782 | 2103189| 3235036 2113185| 38300575 282233136 | 28350503 (166.367)|
O PERATING EXPEN DIT URES
OPERATIONS
Wages - O 298,091 600,801 570,614 813,943 780,558 802,024 854,021 727,912 | 1,200,618 727,912 727912 | 1,200618 5,705.02 10,924,400 1,215,373
Overtime - © 152,543 155,601 341,811 237,297 150,674 205420 173,629 164, 125 251,625 164 125 163125 251625 2502619 1118300 (1.353315)
Fringe Benefits- O 160,090 131,433 97,828 167,834 156,610 326,699 163,656 146,133 163467 146,133 146,133 1684967 1,975,486 2145,100 165,614
Payroll Taxes - O 33,638 61,932 99,813 78,905 72,839 75,532 81,880 54,150 55,525 54150 54,150 85,925 847,852 505,100 57,248
Retirement Contributions - O 35,255 50,432 96,281 75,263 74,216 79,133 81,932 72,536 117,352 72536 72,536 117,352 555,026 596,500 (32,526)
Total Operations Personnel 680,617 | 1.084.212| 1.606347]| 1377443 1.27a8s8 1488829 | 1361118 1160857 | 1827983| 1164857 | 1164857 1327938 16,022,010 | 16035400 15350 |
Operating Materials and Supplies ses 3,516 15911 (7.772) 1,565 170% 761 3,423 3423 3423 3423 3423 33,763 40,000 6237
Operator Training 7,245 108 2,630 4,906 1,981 4,556 2,714 2,035 2,095 2099 2,099 20339 35583 33478 (3,105)
Treining and Travel - O 10,609 3,162 6011 1,192 - 5,032 602 3,193 3153 3,153 3,193 3153 32576 46,522 3,536
[TOTAL OPERATIONS EXPENDITURES 699,636 | 1,091,001 | 1.632.898| 1375768 | 1273444 1,500,120 | 1.365,195 | 1,173,521 | 1,836,653 | 1,173,521 | 1,173,521 | 1836653 16,136,932 16,155,400 22,468
MAINTEN ANCE
Wages- M 106,471 167,894 252,383 156,998 167.756 165,565 166,743 174, 743 251,065 174 743 174,743 251065 2250783 2434 200 183417
Overtime - M 6,722 14,232 11,170 4,520 7,887 5,660 7,158 3,800 13,200 8,800 3,800 13,200 110188 123,200 13,012
Fringe Benefits- M 27,645 24,118 25,623 27,501 25,226 27,805 33,666 32,117 22,117 32117 32,117 32117 3561 387,600 31,832
Payroll Taxes - M 8,537 13,715 195,873 15,189 13,252 12,884 12,120 13,800 20,700 13,800 13,800 20,700 180,372 153,200 12,828
Retirement Contributions - M 8,619 13381 13,507 13762 13215 13370 13,775 14,633 21142 14633 14,633 21142 1819567 202100 20133
[Total Maintenance Personnel 157,994 233,341 329,156 257,970 231,338 225,284 235,512 244,143 338,228 244,143 244,143 338228 3,079475 3,340,300 260,821
Fuel & Lubricants 216,385 264,829 204,558 217,212 221,449 176,195 176,666 165,276 165276 165,276 165276 165,276 2,303,672 1,431,692 (821,530,
Repair Parts & Supplies 113,376 55,235 132,120 133,375 116,732 135,803 €5,935 70,625 70,625 70,625 70,625 70,625 1,161,082 755,400 (365,632)
Maintenance Services 22,520 15,117 20,132 25,838 22,898 17,272 18,798 21,323 21,323 21,323 21,323 21,323 265,657 275,000 5303
Building Maintenance 32,826 18,758 70,433 48,693 28,453 50138 36,516 15 510 15510 15510 15510 15510 385 331 330,000 (55381)
Training and Travel - M - s42 253 - - 361 - 2,351 2351 2351 2,351 2351 13,305 20,000 6,651
TOTAL MAINTENANCE
EXPEN DITURES 543,202 628422 776,718 684,088 620,885 615,054 537,438 523,729 617,813 523,729 523,729 617,813 7,212,620 6,242,392 (570,223)
ADMINISTRATION
Wages- A 59,347 174,420 244,538 165,576 168,241 130299 163,543 174, 751 252,743 176,150 176150 261,830 2237587 2.357,.900 1559513
Fringe Benefits- A 22,741 21,826 20,158 22,334 22,233 22,756 17,779 27,774 27,774 27,774 27,774 51,576 312,500 333,290 20,350
Payroll Taxes - A 7,259 12,301 18,626 12,462 12,216 12,306 12,639 15,300 15300 15,300 15,300 25,650 175,061 183,600 8539
Retirement Contributions - A 7,284 11,756 17,826 12,305 13,137 13,157 13,263 13,980 20,219 13052 13,092 20,536 173,362 152,100 18,738
Total Administrative Personnel 137,030 220,343 301168 213,078 216,028 229,557 207,230 231,505 316,036 233316 233,316 360,403 2,895,310 3,106,390 207,530
Insurance 71,401 76.936 80,834 76,986 77.223 76536 76,936 72,433 73483 75483 78423 75483 5253516 531,800 11533
Professional Services 60,935 111,263 52,563 50,164 71,870 83,7431 56,147 85,717 85,717 85717 85,717 123468 1,038,018 1,028,600 (5,413)
Utilities 26,505 31,721 25,052 23,761 28,302 55,174 33,755 27,083 27,083 27,083 27,083 27,083 355,657 325,000 (34,657)
Telecommunications 5,287 5,122 3,345 5,572 7,531 11,329 5,192 5,667 5,667 5667 5,667 5667 113,925 116,000 2,075
Printing & Advertising 10,236 35,246 (27,538) 1,435 23,610 3,302 1,378 5,883 53883 5,883 5,883 5,883 77.687 70,600 (7,087)|
Training, Travel, Events 7,215 7,479 3,650 1,282 883 1,138 235 3,766 3,766 3,766 3,766 3,766 40,565 50,000 5,035
Office Equipment and Supplies 2,577 11,538 7,362 7.881 3,720 7,670 2,751 8,758 8,758 8758 8,758 8758 57,791 105,100 17,309
Employee Recognition 287 - 22 8,172 3,552 1,106 166 60 60 60 60 60 13205 13000 (205)
Dues and Subscriptions 1,543 1362 7343 1,203 = 1,265 1,567 1,567 1567 1,567 1,567 1,567 16212 183500 2588
Grant Local Match - = = - 15,672 - 15,572 - - - - 13,932 45578 15,000 (30,578)
[TOTAL ADMIN EXPENDITURES 328,422 505,062 493,342 433,539 aas,088 471,881 405,381 452,750 537,021 454,301 454,301 638070 5,623,155 5,791,790 168,555
CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-QP)
Computer and Office Equipment - - - - - - - - - - - 48232 232 60,000 11,768
Maintenance Equipment - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other Equipment Investments - - - - - - - - 132253 - - - 132253 130,000 (12,.253)
15 [TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS (non-QP) = = = S = - - - 142,293 - - 48,232 190,525 190,000 (525))
[TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES | 1571260 | 2.22a.a85 | 2.902.958 | 2.493,395 [ 2.3a8417 | 2,587,055 | 2.308014] 2,150,030 | 3,133,780 | 2.151.550 [ 2.151550| 3140768 | 25163272 | 28383582 (775.650)]
|[MET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) | sazoss| (aos7ze)] (783117 (383.966)] (2as.302) {a59.729)] (196537 (37.258)| (1.030591)] 1083496 (38362)] es0208] {939.135)| 6921 | (546,057)|




ATC Board Agenda Detail e S,
Item #: 6a g 7,
i - . % Z
Item Title: Low-No Grant Application Resolution (@@%
Contact: Martin Barna, Director of Planning & Marketing Moo T
Board Action: Consider Resolution DASH

MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 3, 2023
TO: ATC Board of Directors
FROM: Martin Barna, Director of Planning & Marketing

SUBJECT:FY24 City of Alexandria/DASH Low-No and Bus and Bus Facilities Grant Resolution

Item Summary

The City of Alexandria, in collaboration with DASH, is planning to apply for grant funding through the Federal
Transit Administration’s combined Low or No Emissions and Bus and Bus Facilities discretionary grant programs.
This grant would provide up to $38 million in capital funding for the purchase or conversion of up to twenty-one
(21) buses to battery electric, as well as fund new electric infrastructure to the DASH facility required to support
further conversion of the fleet to battery electric.

Board Action Requested:

Staff is requesting board adoption of the attached resolution in support of the FY2024 City of Alexandria
application and project proposal for the FTA’s Low or No Emissions and Bus and Bus Facilities discretionary grant
programs.

Project Description:

The project continues the support of the DASH fleet electrification policy and goals set forth by the ATC Board and
the City to convert to a fully Zero Emissions fleet by the year 2037. It consists of three main components:

1. The new electric charging infrastructure to support the power requirements of the next phase DASH
campus and it’s electric bus charging needs at full build. This includes all on-site equipment such as
switchgears and power distribution. This will deliver up to 12 total megawatts of new power to the DASH
facility.

2. The conversion of up to (15) replacement buses due for replacement between fiscal years 2023 and 2024 to
be converted to battery electric.

3. The conversion of up to six (6) expansion buses between fiscal years 2024 and 2025 to battery electric.

4. Workforce development to support continued transition to ZEB fleet

Grant Funding Request:

The City intends to submit for a total project amount of up to $38 million for the project. The exact amount will be
determined by the final grant scope which is still being finalized prior to application submittal. The program
requires a local match of no more than 20% which is already secured as outlined:

1. $4.4 million — SmartScale

2. $4.8 million — FY23 DASH Fleet Replacement (CIP)

In addition, there is a potential opportunity to receive an 18% State match for the project if awarded by LowNo.
This opportunity is new for this program year and is subject to State evaluation. If approved, the State match would
be used in lieu of the local funding, which can reduce the local match requirement to as low as 2%.

16




17

o o
2 D
[ fooiz=n)

Resolution to Support Proposed Project Application for the Federal Infrastructure
Funding
(Low-No & Bus and Bus Facilities) for FY2024

RESOLUTION #23-01
FY24 FTA Grant for DASH Fleet Electrification and Facility Electric Infrastructure

WHEREAS, in 2021, the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (Infrastructure Investment and
Jobs Act) was signed into law, and in 2023, funded $1.2 billion and $469.,000 for the U.S.
Department of Transportation’s Low or No Emissions (Low-No) and Buses and Bus
Facilities discretionary grant programs, respectively: and

WHEREAS, the purpose of Low-No is to fund the transition of transit fleet to the lowest
polluting and most energy efficient transit vehicles and the Bus and Bus Facilities
Programs assists in the financing of buses and bus facilities capital projects, including
replacing, rehabilitating, purchasing or leasing buses or related equipment, and
rehabilitating, purchasing, constructing or leasing bus-related facilities; and

WHEREAS, projects are scored based on a merit criteria review by the U.S. Department
of Transportation’s Federal Transit Administration. Evaluation criterion includes
demonstration of need, demonstration of benefits, planning and local/regional
prioritization, local financial commitment, project implementation strategy, and technical,
legal and financial capacity. Additional priority considerations include climate change,
environmental justice, racial equity and barriers to opportunity, creating good —paying
jobs, zero emission fleet transition plan with a focus on work force development, and
other selection criteria; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Alexandria Transit Company, hereafter
referred to as “the Board” commits to support the transition of the DASH fleet to 100%
zero emissions buses by the year 2037 in support of the City’s Eco-City initiative and
Environmental Action Plan 2040; and

WHEREAS, the Board supports the City of Alexandria, hereafter referred to as
“The City’s applications for an allocation of funds up to $38 million through the DOT
FY 2024 Low-No and Bus and Bus Facilities Program for the City of Alexandria,
Virginia; and

WHEREAS, up to $38 million is required to fund critical transportation and
sustainability needs in the City of Alexandria, Virginia.




NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY:

1. The Board supports the City’s application for an allocation of up to $38 million through
the U.S. Department of Transportation Low-No & Bus and Bus Facilities Program; and

2. The Board is fully committed to ensure that all terms and requirements of the Interlocal
agreement between the City and DASH shall be fully satisfied and complied.

The Alexandria Transit Company certifies that the funds shall be used in accordance with
the requirements of Section 58.1-638.A.4 of the Code of Virginia, that the records of receipts of
expenditures of funds granted the City of Alexandria (and) Alexandria Transit Company may

be subject to audit by the US Department of Transportation (and) Federal Transit
Administration and by the State Auditor of Public Accounts, and that funds granted to the City
of Alexandria (and) Alexandria Transit Company for defraying the expenses of the City of
Alexandria (and) Alexandria Transit Company shall be used only for such purposes as
authorized in the Code of Virginia. The undersigned duly qualified and acting Chair of the

Alexandria Transit Company certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a

Resolution, adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Alexandria Transit Company held on
the Eighth day of March 2023.

David Kaplan, Chair
Alexandria Transit Company

ATTEST:

Beth Reveles, Secretary of the Board
Alexandria Transit Company

18




ATC Board Agenda Detail Sl

A% %,
Item #: 6b k7 %
Item Title: Ridership Update @@m
Contact: Martin Barna, Director of Planning & Marketing e T

Board Action: FYI DASH

MONTHLY DASH RIDERSHIP FY17 - CURRENT

DASH Total Monthly Ridership (FY2017-FY2023)

400,000 380,709
350,000 353,515

B FY 2017
Omicron Start of the
Surge/Reduced Pandemic FY 2018
Service
\ FY 2019
\ FY 2020
I FY 2021
150,000 — FY 2022
— Y 2023
100,000
50,000
0

July August September October November December January February March April May June

300,000

New Network
250,000 & Free Fares
200,000

19




ATC Board Agenda Detail SEEINeC,

AV 2
Item #: 6c 9y m:z
Item Title: Draft FY 2024 — FY 2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (@@
Contact: Martin Barna, Director of Planning & Marketing BAEH

Board Action: FYI

DASH is seeking public input on potential service changes for its FY 2024 — FY 2029 Transit Development Plan
(TDP). The TDP is an annual plan that summarizes any proposed or service changes for the following fiscal year
and is directly tied to the proposed operating budget. The draft TDP is typically presented to the Board of
Directors in March with a public hearing in April and final consideration for adoption in May or June. No service
changes are being proposed in the baseline FY 2024 scenario; however, several “unfunded” improvements that
would help DASH towards the full realization of the 2022 ATV Plan are included.

The full DRAFT FY 2023 — FY 2028 ATC Transit Development Plan (TDP) is provided as Attachment I to this
packet.

For more information on the potential service improvements, please visit www.dashbus.com/TDP.

20




QN TRANS/,
ATC Board Agenda Detail f‘“o ﬁ S
Item #: 7 Tz 3
Item Title: Next Meeting Date & Adjournment !‘ N
Board Action: Discussion/Consideration of Approval DASH

21

The next regular meeting of the Alexandria Transit Company Board of Directors
is scheduled for Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 5:30pm

Consider Adjournment




i?@@@ia
Alexandria Transit Company DASH

Board of Directors Docket Attachments

Attachments:

I. Draft FY 2024 — FY 2029 ATC Transit Development Plan

II. Stockholders Meeting Minutes

22




Attachment I

Draft FY 2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit
Development Plan



FY 2024 - FY 2029
ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY (DASH)
TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN (TDP)

ALEXANDRIA TRANSIT COMPANY

DASH

DASHBUS.COM
703.746.DASH (3274)
@DASHBUS




TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 / EXECULIVE SUMMAIY .....ocooiiiiiiieieeieeiee ettt et e ette et e et e ebe e beebeesteestaestaestsesabesabesabeeabeenseenbeebeeseeseenses 1
1.1/ SYSEOIM PEITOIMQNCE ...ttt eetee ettt e e tte e et e e te e e e tae e s tbe e s besetaeeetbeesabeeenbeeensseenares 1
1.2 /FY 2024 Service & Fare Change RecOmMmENdations ..............cueccueeeeeeevereeieeeieeeeeeeeieeeecseeeseeens 2
1.4/ ATC Capital Program SUMMQIY ..........ccceeeceeeeieeeeieeeeireeeeeeeeeeeeiaeesiaeeeetesesseesireeeetesenteeessressresennes 3
2.0 / TDP BACKGIOUNM...........ooeiiiiiece ettt sttt e et e et e et e e be e s taesteestaesssessaesasesateensennse ees 5
2.1/ PUIPOSE & FOIMQL.......occuveeveeieeieeitee et eteeeeeseeseesaeeteebeebeeebe e beesbeesbaestaesbaestsesabesabesabeenbeenseenses 5
2.2/ PrOCESS & TIMEIINE .....uvvvveeeieeeeeeiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e ettt e e e e s e eeeaae et e e e s e sesaaateeeessssssabaeeaesesssasrasseseessanns 5
2.3/ AleXandria TrANSIE VISION PION ..........ooveeeeeeieeeieeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeateeeeeseeesaateeesesesesseseeeeessessssaeeseesses 6
3.0 / SYSTEM SUMMAIY ......ocueiiiiiiiecieeie ettt te e te e te e s e e st e s taestaesabeeabeaabeesteesteesbaestaestaestaesssesssesasesssesnseensenn on 7
o Y=l 4/ o= V=L O 7
o o1 =X TR 7
3.3/ OtREI TIANSIE PLOVIEIS ....ceveveeeeieeeeeeieee oo eeeeee e e e e eeeiae et e e e s s sesaaaeeeesssessabaseeessssssssaseeessssnssnnes 11
3.4 / PASSENGEI FACIIIEIES .......oeecveeeeeeeetee et eeetee et eeeeeeae e e eteeeetae e e ae e e be e e teseetseesabeestesesesesaressnreean 11
3.5/ BUS FIBET...ocoeooeeeeeeee ettt e e e e e e e ettt e e e s e see e eeeeesseaa s aeereeesesaeasaateeeeesesasneaeeeeeesaenes 17
N XA e =L 3R 19
B.7 / FUNGING ..ottt et ettt et e et e et e et e e e ate e s be e e ebaeeetaeesabeesabes e beeeasseesasessseeesssen eeennes 19
4.0 / SYStEM PerfOrMANCE..........cocvievietieeteecteecteeeeecee e eete bt eeteeeteesteesteesteesaeeeabeeaseeaseenseenseenbeenseesteensseses 20
B T o= K=V =) (TR 20
4.3 / RiIAEISRID DY ROULE ...t eee ettt ete et e etee et e et e eeteeeetaeeeteseeteeeetaeesstesetesensreeennes 22
4.8/ COSE EffiCIBNCY vecuvveveeeteeeteecteeeee et ete et eiteeete et et e st e ta e s te e s baestaestbesabesabesabeeabeeabeenbeeteeteeseenseenses 23
4.5/ SEIVICE REIADINTY ...ttt ettt ettt etee e te e e be e e ete e e bt e e s be e ebeeestaeesabeeebesesreenans 24
4.6/ ACCESS & MODIIILY......ooccueeeereeetee e eeee e ettt e et etee e te e et e et e e taeeebe e eebeeeetaeentteeetesensreesnns 25
4.7 / System PerformManCe SUMIMGIY..........coveeceeecreeeeeeeeieeeeeeeesteseeieeesiseesesesesseeesseeetessstesesseesseseses 27
5.0 / Service & Fare ReCOMMENAAtiONS ...........c.coooviiiiiiiiiiiecie ettt et ere e te e et e eeareeeree e 31
5.1/ Service Recommendations (FY 2024) .........ccueuceeceeceeieesieeireesteesteesieesaessesisesvessesseeseenseesseenns 31
5.3/ Service Recommendations (FY 2025 — FY 2029) ......cccouueeeeeueeeeiieeeeieeeeeeeseeeeesiueseesssvesesssseesesenns 40
5.4 / Future Fare Change Recommendations (FY 2025 — FY 2029) .......c.ocovueeeceeeceeeceeeeiereeieeecreeennes 42
6.0 / DASH Capital BUAZEt PrOSIam ..........ccccociiiiiiieeieeieeie et e et e e e s teesaeesaestesate et e ente e te e be e beessaessaas 46
6.1/ FY 2024 — FY 2033 Capital Improvement PIAN (CIP) ............ccceeeeeieeieeeieeieeeiieeereesreesreesseesveessens 46
6.2 / FIEet REPIACEIMENT PIAN .......c..oocvveteeciieiiee ettt ettt et et ste e ta e s v e s tvesabeeabeeabeebeeabeebaeseereas 46

0 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (FINAL)



6.3 / FICET EXDONSION ...t et eete et eeteeeetae e e te e et e e eteeeeateesbeeebeeeetaeessteesbeeeseseasseesateesseeenes 48

6.4 / DASH EIECLIIC BUS PrOGIGM .....occeveeeeeeeeeee e eeteeeeteeeeeeeeaeeeeteeeeteeeeaaeessesensesenseeessseessesenseeesnreeans 50
6.5 / DASH FACIlity EXDANSION .....cvveveeireeiieeeieeeiteeiteeiteeeveeeteeeteesteesteestaesatestsesasesasesabesabeebeeseebeeseensens 51
6.6/ TeChNOIOGY IMPIrOVEMENLS ..........oeecueeecieeecieeeciee et eeteeete e e eteeeetee e eae e s teesebeeesaseesateesbeeeseeesareens 52
6.7 / Other Capital OULIQY ITEMS ...........cccueeeeeeeecieeeciee et et eite e e ctee e tveeeae e sbe e e eteeesaveesabeesbeeeseeesareens 54
7.0 / Public OUtreach & FEEADACK .............ocuiiiiiiiiiiicee ettt ettt s st e e st e e 55

0 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (FINAL)



1.0 / Executive Summary

This document represents the FY 2024 — FY 2029
Transit Development Plan (TDP) for the Alexandria
Transit Company (ATC). The Alexandria Transit
Company is responsible for the management,
operation, and maintenance of the DASH bus system in
Alexandria, Virginia.

The Transit Development Plan (TDP) provides a
comprehensive vision of future service development,
fare adjustments, and capital investments based on
recommendations from the General Manager, ATC
Board of Directors and DASH staff. More specifically, it
evaluates current DASH system performance, outlines projected service levels for FY 2024 based on the
draft budget, and provides fiscally-unconstrained guidance on future service changes and capital
improvements for the remaining five years of the six-year plan cycle (FY 2024 — FY 2029). The TDP is
updated each year by DASH staff and is subject to annual review, amendment, and adoption by the ATC
Board of Directors. The document also serves as a resource for the City staff as they consider future ATC
requests for financial assistance.

The FY 2023 Transit Development Plan addresses the period beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30,
2029. The document has been prepared in accordance with board-adopted procedures and is divided
into four main sections — System Overview (Section 3), System Performance (Section 4), Service & Fare
Change Recommendations (Section 5), and Capital Budget (Section 6).

The key findings and recommendations of these four sections are summarized below:

1.1/ System Performance

e InFY 2022, DASH operated roughly 290,000 platform hours and 2.7 million platform miles of
regular DASH service, including 1-395 Commuter Choice service.

e InFY 2022, DASH recorded just over 3 million passenger boardings, which was up roughly 98%
from FY 2021, but was still down by 20% from before the pandemic. In more recent months,
DASH has eclipsed pre-pandemic ridership levels.

e DASH On-Time Performance was approximately 86% in FY 2022, which represents a 2%
decrease from FY 2021, but is still above the industry OTP standard of 85%.

e DASH continues to provide exceptional access to its frequent, all-day bus routes, which are
within walking distance to 73% of Alexandria residents and 81% of those who reside in low-
income households.

e DASH saw a major increase in missed trips due to staffing shortages in FY 2022.

1| FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




1.2 /FY 2024 Service & Fare Change Recommendations

e The DASH service plan for FY 2024 can be summarized as follows:

O

FY 2024 Service Levels (Baseline). Assuming preliminary budget subsidy levels provided
by City’s Office of Management and Budget and no “Unfunded ATV Improvements”,
DASH projects that it will operate just over 325,000 platform hours and roughly 3.05
million annual platform miles in FY 2024, which is a one (1) percent increase over the
annualized amount of service budgeted for FY 2023. These totals include enhanced
service on Line 35 and Line 36A/B which is currently funded by the I-395 Commuter
Choice Program. DASH has applied for a two-year extension of this funding that (if
approved) will allow current service levels on both routes.

FY 2024 Service Levels (Unfunded ATV Improvements). DASH has also developed an
alternate, unfunded scenario that includes four (4) service improvements from the 2022
Alexandria Transit Vision (ATV) Plan that have not yet been implemented. These
additional improvements would increase the annual service totals to roughly 338,000
platform hours and 3.17 million platform miles, which represents an increase of roughly
four (4) percent above the baseline scenario. These improvements would require $1.6
million in additional annual operating costs for FY 2024, which could be identified by
City Council through the “Add/Delete” budget process and included in the city’s final FY
2024 budget.

Of the four additional improvements, the Line 33 and 34 enhancements were
identified as the top priorities for FY 2024 due to their importance in providing more
convenient off-peak bus connections to the new Potomac Yard Metro Station from
Arlandria, Old Town North and Del Ray.

1-395/95 Commuter Choice Program. In FY 2022, DASH and the City of Alexandria were
awarded funding for two major service enhancements on Lines 35 and 36A/B through
the NVTC I-395 Commuter Choice grant program. The enhanced service on these two
routes was launched with the New DASH Network in September 2021, but DASH must
re-apply for the funding every two years. Based on this, DASH has applied for the
necessary funding to extend these service enhancements from September 2023 to
September 2025. DASH is also applying for one new project through the 1-395
Commuter Choice program that would fund the purchase of five (5) 60-foot articulated
buses that would be deployed to Line 35 to provide additional passenger capacity along
the busiest corridor in the DASH system.

o The following DASH fare-related actions are planned for FY 2023:

e}

Free Fares. DASH will continue as a 100% fare-free operation, as was first introduced in
September 2021 with the New DASH Network. The fare-free program will continue
through FY 2025 as funded and required by the Transit Ridership Incentive Program
(TRIP) from the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (DRPT) with local
support from the City of Alexandria. Continued local support is anticipated as
demonstrated by the City and ATC Board.

2 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




1.3 /FY 2024 - FY 2028 Service & Fare Change Recommendations

o FY 2025 Service Improvements. In FY 2025, DASH will propose to implement any remaining
improvements from the 2022 Alexandria Transit Vision (ATV) Plan that are not implemented in
FY 2024, including any “Unfunded ATV Improvements” that remain unfunded. In addition to
these improvements, DASH plans to seek funding for additional improvements on Line 30, Line
32, Line 103 and Line 104, as outlined in Section 5.3.

e WMATA Better Bus Network Project. DASH will also continue to work closely with WMATA and
other regional partners in the ongoing development of the “Better Bus Network” regional bus
network redesign project, which could have major impacts for future bus service in Alexandria
and the greater Washington D.C. region. The first phase of route changes resulting from this
project could be implemented as early as FY 2025. More information about WMATA's “Bus
Transformation Project can be found at: https://bustransformationproject.com/.

o FY 2026 Service Improvements. In FY 2025, DASH will propose to implement additional
improvements on Line 32, along with the extension of the King Street Trolley from the King
Street Metro to the Eisenhower Avenue Metro.

e 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan. DASH
will continue to move forward with the
implementation of the 2030 Alexandria Transit
Vision Plan in FY 2027 and beyond. More
information on the 2030 Alexandria Transit
Vision Plan can be found in Section 5.3 or on
the ATV website
(www.dashbus.com/transitvision).

e West End Transitway. DASH will continue to
work with the City of Alexandria on the
planning and design of the West End : S .
Transitway, which will partially replace Line 35 service in the West End. More information on
the West End Transitway can be found in Section 5.3.

e Duke Street Bus Rapid Transit (BRT). DASH will continue to work with the City of Alexandria on
the planning for the Duke Street Transitway, which will span between Landmark Mall and the
King Street Metro. More information on the Duke Street BRT can be found in Section 5.3.

e Fare Changes. No additional fare changes for FY 2025 or beyond are being proposed at this
time.

1.4 /ATC Capital Program Summary

e DASH Fleet. As of the start of FY 2024, the DASH bus fleet will include 101 active buses and six
(6) contingency spare buses.

3 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




e Electric Buses. In FY 2024, DASH is planning to purchase up to 21 additional 100% electric buses,
including ten replacement buses, five replacement trolleys, and six expansion buses. Six
expansion buses would be purchased with funding from the Virginia Department of
Transportation (VDOT) SmartScale grant program. DASH and the City are also seeking additional
funding for electric buses through several federal grant programs that are administered by the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA).

e Fleet Replacement. The City of Alexandria’s FY 2024 — FY 2033 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
includes substantial funding for DASH replacement buses that will allow DASH to maintain its
State of Good Repair (SGR) and continue its transition to electric buses. Based on City budget
guidance, the proposed CIP includes funding for ten clean diesel replacement buses in FY 2024,
which may be upgraded to 100% electric buses if DASH and the City are able to secure additional
FTA funding through the FY 2024 Low/No Emission Vehicle grant program. The total requested
funding in the FY 2024 — FY 2033 CIP for replacement bus purchases — including the transition to
a zero-emission fleet — is $105.1 million.

e Zero-Emission Fleet Planning. DASH is continuing to work with a consultant team from WSP,
Inc. on its Zero-Emission Bus Implementation Plan. Phase Il of the plan is expected to be
completed by Spring 2023 and will guide DASH in its effort to transition the entire bus fleet to
100% electric propulsion by 2037.

o DASH Facility Expansion Project. In early 2022, DASH launched the design phase for its major
facility expansion project, funded by the state’s Smart Scale program. The project will allow
DASH to expand its facility onto the existing city impound lot that is located immediately west of
the existing DASH garage. The expansion will include capacity for up to 40 additional buses and
electric charging equipment and infrastructure in support of a future zero-emission bus fleet. It
also includes six expansion buses to be purchased by FY 2024. Construction of the facility
expansion project is expected to be completed by 2025.

e Other Capital Improvement Projects. Additional FY 2024 — FY 2033 CIP funds are allocated
future fleet expansions, hybrid battery and powertrain replacements, on-route electric bus
charging stations, and other DASH technology needs.

Finally, DASH has also submitted three (3) applications for the
FY 2024 Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation
(DRPT) grant cycle. These applications would provide funding
for two demonstration projects — Electric Bus Charge
Management System and an Automated Wheelchair
Securement System — as well as the continuation of the DASH
Public Transit Intern program for FY 2024.

4 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




2.0 / TDP Background

The Transit Development Plan is prepared each year to document and present the General Manager’s
recommendations relating to service, fares, and the capital budget for the upcoming fiscal year. The
plan also serves as a planning and budgetary road map for the following five (5) years. To this end, the
TDP provides an evaluation of the existing DASH bus service and a corresponding outline for future
service development and capital investment. The plan aligns with the budgetary assumptions for the
upcoming fiscal year (FY 2024) and will be used as a starting point for budget discussions in future fiscal
years (FY 2025 — FY 2029).

2.1/ Purpose & Format

The Transit Development Plan (TDP) is designed to provide a comprehensive vision of future service
development, fare adjustments, and capital investments based on recommendations from the General
Manager, ATC Board of Directors, and DASH staff. More specifically, it evaluates current DASH system
performance, outlines projected service levels based on the FY 2024 draft budget, and provides fiscally-
unconstrained guidance on future service changes and capital improvements for the remaining five
years of the six-year plan cycle (FY 2025 — FY 2029). The TDP is updated each year by DASH staff and is
subject to annual review, amendment, and adoption by the ATC Board of Directors. The document also
serves as a resource for the city staff as they consider future ATC requests for financial assistance

2.2 / Process & Timeline

The TDP approval process is designed to run in parallel with the City of Alexandria’s annual budget
timeline. As shown in Table 2-1, the basic TDP assumptions are developed by DASH management in the
late fall and early winter. A draft of the TDP is typically submitted to the Board of Directors and released
for public review in March. This release marks the beginning of the public comment period that
culminates with a formal public hearing at the April meeting of the ATC Board. The public comment
period includes multiple virtual community meetings, online engagement, and the opportunity for
comments to be submitted via phone, email, or during the Public Hearing at the Board of Directors
meeting in April.

DASH staff reviews all input and revises the document as needed to incorporate feedback and align with
the final city budget. The final ATC Transit Development Plan is then reviewed and adopted by the ATC
Board of Directors in May so that the plan may be implemented for the subsequent fiscal year on July
1,

5 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Table 2 — 1 / Annual ATC Transit Development Plan (TDP) Timeline

ATC Staff ATC Board City Staff/OMB/Council
October Staff submits current budget to | Draft FY24 budget presented to | City Manager releases priorities
OMB ATC Board forinput and instructions
November Staff submit suppl. requests and| BOARD ACTION to approve or | Suppl. requests and reductions
reductions to OMB amend proposed budget due to OMB.
December N/A N/A Focus Area Teams meet
Staff meet with OMB and Cit
January y N/A City Manager finalizes budget
Manager
Staff receives subsidy level from Manager releases proposed
February . N/A . .
OMB, revises budget budget/CIP to City Council
March Proposed TDP & Budget Proposed TDP & Budget City Council Budget Work
completed; outreach begins presented to Board for input Sessions
Aoril Staff present budget to Council, | Board holds Public Hearing for City Council Budget Work
P conduct public outreach Proposed FY24 TDP & Budget Sessions
Ma Staff develops final TDP/Budget | BOARD ACTION to adopt revised | City Council adopts FY24 Budget
Y based on input FY24 TDP and Budget and Capital Imp. Program (CIP)
Prepare forimplementation of
June P P N/A N/A
any July service/fare changes
2.3 / Alexandria Transit Vision Plan
The Alexandria Transit Vision (ATV) Plan is an *ele,
ambitious bus network redesign study conducted .'..'

by DASH and the City of Alexandria to take a ALE //AN DRIA oo

community-driven approach to re-designing the

city’s transit network from scratch. The goal of Transit Vision

the ATV — as determined through community it e
outreach —is to create a more useful bus network that encourages more people to go to more places at
more times using transit. After three rounds of public engagement and nearly two years of discussion,
the final 2022 and 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan networks were adopted by the DASH Board of
Directors in December 2019.

The first implementation phase of the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan — known as the “New DASH
Network” —was launched in September 2021. Due to budget constraints and other major DASH funding
needs, the City was not able to fund the full 2022 ATV Plan recommendations in FY 2022 or FY 2023.
Additional 2022 ATV improvements are not currently proposed for the FY 2024 baseline scenario but are
included in the “unfunded” scenario for FY 2024 which would require additional funding from Alexandria
City Council. Additional information on the 2030 ATV recommendations is included in Section 5-3.

6 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




3.0 / System Summary

DASH currently operates traditional fixed-route bus service on ten regular bus routes, and the King
Street Trolley. The primary DASH service area covers approximately 15 square miles and generally aligns
with the jurisdictional boundaries of the City of Alexandria. A map of the DASH bus system is included as
Figure 3-1. An inset map depicting bus service in Old Town Alexandria is shown as Figure 3-2.

3.1/ Service Area

The majority of DASH service operates within the City of Alexandria, however, three routes — Lines 35,
103, and 104 — also provide service along Interstate 395 between Alexandria and the Pentagon. As
shown in Figures 3-1 and 3-2, the DASH bus system design follows a modified hub-and-spoke network
design model with Old Town as the “hub”, and the major east-west arterials (King Street, Seminary
Road, Duke Street, and Eisenhower Avenue) serving as the “spokes”. Several “crosstown routes” like
Line 36 A/B also provide connections between outlying areas and major trip generators on the West End
and northern Alexandria. DASH provides local bus service within the City, but also connects passengers
to the Metrorail system, which has four stations within the City of Alexandria, and a fifth station
scheduled to open at Potomac Yard in mid-2023 .

3.2/ Routes

The DASH bus system consists of 10 regular bus routes and the King Street Trolley. The basic
characteristics of each route are summarized in Table 3-1. All eleven routes operate on weekdays and
eight routes run on Saturdays and Sundays. On most routes, weekday service runs from at least 6:00
AM to 11:00 PM, and weekend service runs from at least 7:00 AM to 10:00 PM. Weekday peak service
for most routes runs every 15-30 minutes. Weekday off-peak service typically runs every 30-60 minutes
during mid-days and evenings. Of the eight routes that run on Saturdays and Sundays, four run every 15
minutes or better. On Saturdays, only one of the eight routes runs only every 60 minutes, but on
Sundays, three of the eight routes only run once every hour.

DASH also operates the iconic King Street Trolley, a free tourist-oriented service running between the
King Street Metro and City Hall/Market Square via King Street. The trolleys typically run every 15
minutes from 11:00 AM to 11:00 PM, 365 days per year.

Additional information on the destinations, service levels, and operating characteristics for specific
DASH routes is provided in Table 3-1.

7 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Figure 3 — 1 / DASH System Map

James K. Polk Alexandria (3]

‘ar}

3, 5 @ Charles Barrett Elementary 5 ‘fl,ﬁ’ dl Ronald Reagan m
R ARLANDRIA Adandria o 8% Washingion
e! & Shoppin: a4 National Airport
2™ %g Vi o, L G Shogping atonal Ao NORTH
. Four Mil
Sl (AR e T Bk
@\more Alexandr Ef’a Kelly q:
/ eznen!a% gd AV A e
&
2
%, 5 9
WESTEND €

JohnAdams WES S Southern " |Potomac Yard &
mentary 5. 5
2 [ ] & > Mgro (2022) O
g, " B ()
iy k:

Poraielly h‘”’l ¢ - S\ount Vernon z

N 9. * ] DEL RAY 2
Nature Park Ave erdinand T. Day Mark mSeminary Elementary g %
lementary SchoofCenter @ Plaza < h%rad'lee 3 %. &— See Old Town Inset
o PINg m + Duncanm §
William Ramsay # Winkler @ N, mBurke o ; =
' 'a'/zme'r?caé Botanical o™ Libraty CHS Mioni gzﬂ,fgﬁtﬁ",;’“’ LDk pel Ray Ave 3 3 @s{[D=~ DASH Frequent Routes
i ~
va'i’ ™ W Francis Hammond # oy & Howard '(.a;rlwfpus H Every 15 minutes or better,
o Middle School £ o« 4 2 all day, seven days perweek
OLNIA Marn S ergyy 2 #Episcopal ACHS # on** 3t Stephens 3 «{)-~ DASH 7-Day Route
& B Hhool  Kingst &StAgnes - § Maina
Campus Q)%s;ﬁwe’ P9 gellefonte "Z) I;’ocsé z,’,:‘,;’\'zz = b m Towers @[T~ DASH Weekday Only

; Virginis
g” #Llementary Hospitaf Dweﬁtgiza! al hij’)‘?"zl'i" % roe Ave
; ‘%’i lf‘" Semina'y ~ b ug\nn‘\"mk; (TP King StreetTrolley
4,
‘e WPost Gi Z Metrobus Frequent Route
r""}"lm Patrick He wa AI—EXANDRIA 7 “;ndrhl‘“ W?acs’ﬁﬁ ton” v
trick Henry ; 4
ilementary : gf Ss:e hens ﬂ; ndale Ave A;hddle chool MetrobusRoute
nes
, UppergSChool A Yag, Metrobus Weekday Only
% ook valley = J< e 4y & Elementary mCenell «=@l= ART/Fairfax Connector
Park H
_gg < Shops of g o’& & Metroway (MWY)
s ) 2
& .ﬁarley Foxchass > % g Richmond Hi?hway
ibrary o Express (REX
venson
0 Ben Alexandiia - L S Metrorail Station
2 Brenman Duke 5 Commo:s 4& A L r:,.m, ™ ==+ Metrorail Line
Picket ™ g Post Office = 2 High School George Washington Netre” 9 < Founders ‘ Virginia Rail Express
dsall R WWest End Village Masonic Natignaly 3 = z (VRE) Station
DAS iemanas \::l)m ....... g N = ] amreas o
— Headquamﬂ@ (o Stat R o A KST ! c;m,.,?' st s ~% Amtrak Station
WSocial Security + Elzmue'w Tucker Wshetter é&?ﬁ:ﬂ?}fﬁi’l y %, &= / T Kng e Lo ety ED Capital Bikeshare
3 Administration mentary jcb] 336 Duke lexandriam Vaterfront
| Van Dorn Station ““ﬂhm‘ = Holmes g, Eisenhower ave ) Naﬁof’."a geme mleson ve i / 5: D]szricteggg# Du o ﬁ D
vEs
Shopping Center o oundaton W——U.S. Federal N 2 ke st W Point of Interest
Courthouse 5 @ Hospital
5 [ ] ospital
@E isenhower US. Patent Office/ Gibbon Wilkes s¢ P
\Y J lational Inventors & = S
Ave Metro National I School
\an®BTn fa5) Hall of Fame Museum & F"anklin sq es:Crouch
& = = itional @ Interstate
St Metro La{,lml{ge ¥ i\lanmel 3
ar »lce m i
& Center B Sﬂxn {13 Us Highway
" = 5 @0 State Highway
- > Runtington Ko ¥ t#Catholic = Jones 0
ROSE HILL 5| __Huntington [, o7 Park @.m f £ SoHaal oint
£ s D 495 Mook ©2021 Alexandria Transit Company (DASH)
= =0 TR n Memorial Brid, Design by Smartmaps, Inc.
s 75 ; o qcoaRg HUNTINGTON {=102) Hinting g

«fF= 01d Town Circulator

8 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Figure 3-2 / Old Town Alexandria Inset Map

It 2 } .
! Dﬁgfj” - = Old Town Alexandria
Iy = pel Ray Ave 2 3
= . Ave S
%, Windsor @ .,_;
< Marina
% Simpson | m Towers
< S’I‘;Z%”’ g3 SlatersLn
= = i
©
= / 34
® pelsonAve™ z '3% s
13
yeandriahve | George % 0% §Bashloryy,
: s £ =
Glendale Ave ’\zlddle choo) s £
1$t t “ El2ndst
fd i B Canal
ontg ana
BraddoCkaRd [ miE S =Samery st Center
: Metrow OEOSt s QTE ==
e ‘
Naomi Brooks® 'Cga Peng], !
Elementary eton st « sl 2
2 & = S N Oronoco
A 5 S5 g S || Bay Park
3 = I 0 5 |
o Kib £E £ 220 orone
5 & st
Ol Town OLD £€3 £ OTC g
ton o Barrett @ 30 31 Sl
o Metro OWN library oS Park
rial ™ s IV D King g Post® IC-:II% 15
)0 Stationrles o remm KT, OTC Mg all N Cameron 5y
& = ’?9 £ G T — cb) ..}‘, Kin ITorpedo Factory
D o™ 10”. ----- X &,
) jcb) D Alexandr/aI &g aterfront
O Jamieson ay 1’6@ —  General “=! Prince 5t Pa;f~k
W3 % .‘E;,: District Court | Duke s¢
= Courthouse H
ES

|

' U.S. Patent Office/
National Inventors
Hall of Fame Museum

s
&S m-Lee ? Je
£ .Center & ferson st
2 2 = St Mary
luntington & 'sb 3 Catholic .;';’or{ei
oin.
Par @ P = School Sl

& . Wilkes s
£+ |

iy S 7%
DASH

Woodrow Wilson Memorial Bridge
B Hunting

9 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Table 3-1 / DASH Service Characteristics by Route

30 Van Dorn Metro to Braddock Road Metro via 5:00am - 10-20 30 30 5:45am - 30 5:45am - 30
Landmark Mall, Van Dorn, King & Old Town 12:00am ) 12:40am 11:30pm
31 NVC.C to Brcddo.ck Road Metro via Bradlee 5:00am - 10 15-30 30-60 5:45am - 15-30 5:45am - 15-30
Shopping Center, King Street Metro & Old Town | 12:30am 12:30am 12:30am
32 Landmark Mall to King Siree.i Metro via Pickett 5:00am - 30 60 60 7:00am - 60 7:00am - 60
Street, Van Dorn Metro & Eisenhower Metro 10:00pm 10:00pm 10:00pm
33 King Street Metro to Potomac Yard via 6:00am - 30 30 60 7:00am - 30 7:30am - 0
Commonwealth, Monroe, Mt. Vernon, & Reed 10:00pm 10:00pm 9:30pm
Lee Center to Braddock Street Metro via S Royal &| 5:00am - 7:00am - 7:00am -
34 N Fairfax 10:00pm 30 30 30 10:30pm 30 10:30pm 60
Van Dorn Metro to Pentagon Metro via Landmark | 4:45am - 5:45am - 5:45am -
35 Mall, Mark Center, and 1-395 12:30am 10 10 15-30 3:00am 15 2am 15
Mark Center Station to Potamac Yard via Southern| 6:00am - 7:00am - 7:00am -
36A/B ) 15 15 15 15 15
Towers, Bradlee Shopping Center, & Glebe 11:00pm 10:45pm 10:45pm
102 Mark Center Siqiio.n to King' Street Metro via 5:00am- 30 60 ) ) ) ) )
Seminary & King 8:00pm
103 Braddock Road Metro to Pentagon Metro via 6:00am - 30
Russel, Glebe, & Parkfairfax 8:00pm : : : : : :
104 Braddock Road Metro to Pentagon Metro via 6:15am - 30
Cameron Mills Drive and Parkfairfax 8:15pm i ) ) ) ) )
11:00am- 11:00am- 11:00am-
King Street Troll 15 15 15 15 15
KST ) alEanetizy 11:00pm 11:00pm 11:00pm

10 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




3.3/ Other Transit Providers

The DASH bus network in Alexandria provides a local complement to the regional transit network.
Regional operators that provide service to/from Alexandria include:

e Metrorail (WMATA). Metrorail operates heavy rail service to 91 stations throughout the
Washington, DC region, and typically carries over 180 million passengers per year. The City of
Alexandria is served by the blue and yellow lines at four different Metrorail Stations — Braddock
Road, King Street, Eisenhower Avenue, and Van Dorn. These four stations typically draw about
40 million passenger boardings per year. DASH also provides service to the Pentagon Metro
Station in Arlington County. The new Potomac Yard Metrorail Station — an in-fill station in
northern Alexandria on Potomac Avenue —is slated to open in mid-2023.

o Metrobus (WMATA). In addition to Metrorail, WMATA also operates a regional bus network
that typically carries over 130 million passengers per year. Metrobus runs 24 routes that
provide service within the City of Alexandria. This includes the “Metroway” rapid bus service
between Pentagon City and Braddock Road Metro, and the Richmond Highway Express (REX),
which provides frequent, limited-stop service from Mount Vernon to Old Town via Route 1.
Annual Metrobus ridership in Alexandria is typically around 17 million boardings per year.

e Amtrak/Virginia Railway Express. Intercity and commuter rail services such as Amtrak and VRE
stop at Alexandria Union Station, before crossing the Potomac River into Washington, DC. VRE
typically carries up to 5 million passengers per year.

e Private Shuttles. Several dozen private shuttles operate within the City of Alexandria to provide
connections to Metrorail Stations. Examples include the Carlyle/PTO Shuttle, and the Van Dorn
Exchange shuttle, which connects the Van Dorn Exchange apartment complex with the Van Dorn
Metro.

e Accessible Service. Accessible paratransit options are provided through the City of Alexandria’s
DOT program and the WMATA MetroAccess service.

3.4 / Passenger Facilities

DASH buses currently provide service to five Metrorail Stations (Braddock Road, King Street, Eisenhower
Avenue, Van Dorn Avenue and Pentagon), five non-Metrorail transit centers (Landmark Mall, Mark
Center, Southern Towers, NVCC-Alexandria and Potomac Yard) and a total of 548 bus stops. Roughly
29% of these stops are shared by Metrobus or another provider.

Stop Amenities. The City of Alexandria is responsible for maintaining all bus stop within the city. Staff
recently conducted a bus stop inventory and reported the following distribution of amenities:

e 158 of the 714 bus stops in the City have bus shelters (22%).

e 386 of the 714 bus stops in the City have benches (54%).

e 475 of the 714 bus stops in the City are near a streetlight (67%)

e 313 stops (44%) have trash cans, while 65 stops (9%) have recycling cans.

e 71 stops (10%) have a digital sign that displays real-time bus arrival information.

11 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Figure 3-3
Bus Stops by Tenant

= J\\v
‘% me
- ’

OMAC

mvw
Y @
NORTHE

[

LEXAN DRI

3 P nlrhr_' b ‘“
? g T e Lif C y H
mamalt F ]
Q 2 A@xanoriA
=7 I TORICAL
e @0 STRICT!
A !
DASH & WMATA S N ‘:’ ‘-'w : . ;
Q} ; L,

DASH & WMATA & FFX /\
%\// // \ Huntington
Google \ f Y \ O

2990

C=n— ~Map data ©2023 Google,
@ Scribble Maps ¥

12 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Figure 3-4
Bus Stops by Seating Provided

@NORTH RIDGE

@ POTOM WEST PWOMAC YARD

OMAC %

@ - i :'
\i i 3,' N
R
\ % @ ¢ LD TOWN
b @ e ff\\ NORTH
\ S sﬁ%?

0@ TOWN
dr i

ALEXANDRIA
HISTORICAL
DISTRICT!

/\‘ S

WEST/QV“ ?EISEN OWER
EAST

b b

"t;
// 3 Huntington
V4 \ o

@ Benches
? Shelters
— =\

SOUTHWEST
QUADRA @®

Map data ©.2023 Géog)e,
© Scribble Maps@

13 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Figure 3-5
ADA Compliant Bus Stops

m\\\

wesT  PERPMAC YARD

% Ny
e Dty fal b

% ~ \ ? Nmms _
SO rEg SR

\ ?Q
.99 999 VN =Y
’ v t&?i\jﬁ TAYLOR RUN K\ K ‘; i

b

H i,r C

o .09 9 9 N »agﬂfﬁpwf

Q Minor Improvements Needed for ADA Com... gg Wi '::":—J A,
7 = — EIS gER (: 9 \U a1 ALEXANDRIA
? ADA Compliant - : WESE V \_/ E|SEN OWER / ¢ W;?m&el‘
? Major Improvements Needed for ADA Com... \_ e %WE
ADRAN i
Q Moderate Improvements Needed for ADA ... : '

// /\\ Huntington == S \
— r...__‘;\_ v; ‘
) (O‘(‘?,{‘\ Map data ©2023 Google:

© Scribble Maps&

14 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Figure 3-6
ADA Non-Compliant Bus Stops by Improvement Required

\

( I\ :3
CZER §
LEXANDRIA - z POTOMAC VARD
WES ,‘ == i

Miner Improvements Needed for ADA Com... XANDRIA

iy !B
B l
i TORICAL
Q ISTRICT
Major Improvements Needed for ADA Com THWES 3.

,/%"#’/,"ﬁ.—__—‘_ﬁ‘_ﬁgh‘&‘ﬁ"““—~4MEST A
AST
‘ o S QUADRAN
»
Moderate Improvements Needed for ADA ... ///\ S </
untington —_—— u
Y/ *\\ \‘“suﬁ__;‘ =
(Google 7/ CZ0

— "Map data ©2023 Google:
© Scribble Maps@

ADA Compliant

@090

15 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Figure 3-7
Real-Time Information Display Locations (2023)

Y &E o o P m\“
#e r%

(7

-

Bren W=
Mar Pak | <

Real-Time Info Display Types:

B’ Solar-Powered Tablets

a [:] Large Screens/Kiosks \®

= Fran:oma'ﬁd' : ' 0 Park ¥

16 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Bus Stop Accessibility. The survey also determined which stops meet accessibility standards set by the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990:

e 419 stops (57%) are accessible and considered to be “ADA Compliant”

e 295 stops (43%) were identified as potentially non-compliant with ADA accessibility
requirements, mostly due to a lack of an ADA-compliant boarding area.

e Of the 295 stops that may not be ADA accessible, city staff assessed that 46 stops (16%) could
be fixed relatively easily, 179 (60%) could be fixed with moderate difficulty or cost, and the
remaining 70 (24%) would be very difficult or costly to fix due to various site characteristics.

e 131 stops (18%) are in a location where parked cars are permitted to block the bus stop area;
approximately 30 of these “parking space” stops are located on King Street, Fairfax Street or
Madison/Montgomery Streets in Old Town, which is served by buses every 5-15 minutes all day,
seven days per week

e 47 stops (7%) have a bus bulb out or curb extension for easier boarding.

e 677 stops (95%) have an ADA accessible path to the nearest crosswalk.

NOTE: All DASH bus stops that have been installed or updated since 2006 are compliant with ADA design
standards for individuals using wheelchair or other mobility devices. DASH and the City of Alexandria are
identifying projects and funding that can be used to address these gaps in stop accessibility and amenity
distributions. More information on stop improvements is provided in Section 5-1.

Real-Time Information Displays. In 2018, DASH began installing real-time bus arrival information kiosks
and tablets at various high-ridership locations throughout the city. Major kiosks have been installed at
City Hall, Southern Towers, NVCC-Alexandria, King Street Metro, and NSF and other key stop locations.
By the end of FY 2023, DASH will have real-time information displays at over 60 stop locations, which
combined account for nearly 50 percent of DASH average weekday ridership. A map of real-time
information display locations across the City of Alexandria is included as Figure 3-7.

3.5/ Bus Fleet

The DASH bus fleet is currently comprised of 101 buses for use in daily revenue service. The FY 2023
peak service requirement for weekdays is 77 vehicles, so the spare ratio is roughly 31%, or 28% if
Trolleys are excluded. DASH also has six emergency contingency spare buses, which are not included in
the spare ratio calculation. A summary of the active and contingency bus fleets are shown in Table 3-2.

The bus fleet is comprised of mostly 35-foot buses (63%), but also includes 40-foot buses (27%) and
several articulated 60-foot buses (4%). The DASH fleet includes a mix of clean diesel (35%), hybrid
electric (51%), and battery electric buses (14%). DASH also operates six hybrid electric trolleys.

To maintain State of Good Repair, DASH is required to replace each bus once it reaches the end of its 12-
year useful life cycle. A more detailed discussion of bus fleet replacement, expansion plans, and the
“DASH Capital Budget Program” is included in Section 6 of this document.

17 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Table 3-2 / FY 2024 DASH Bus Fleet Summary

DASH REVENUE BUS FLEET - ACTIVE

Vehicle ID's Year Make Type Length # of Vehicles
200-206 2011 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 7
300-302 2011 Gillig Hybrid 40 3
400-404 2011 Gillig (Trolley) Hybrid 29’ 5
207-211 2012 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 5
303-307 2012 Gillig Hybrid 40 5
212-216 2014 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 5
308-309 2014 Gillig Hybrid 40’ 2
217-229 2015 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 13

405 2015 Gillig (Trolley) Hybrid 35' 1
230-233 2017 Gillig Hybrid 35’ 4
310-311 2017 Gillig Hybrid 40
501-514 2018 Gillig Clean Diesel 35’ 14
515-527 2019 New Flyer Clean Diesel 35' 13
528-530 2020 New Flyer Clean Diesel 35' 3
701-705 2020 New Flyer Clean Diesel 40' 5
801-803 2020 New Flyer Electric 40' 3
804-806 2021 Proterra Electric 40' 3
807-810 2021 Proterra Electric 40' 4
901-904 2021 New Flyer Electric 60' 4

TOTAL ACTIVE FLEET 101

CONTINGENCY BUS FLEET

101-102 2007 Gillig Diesel 35’ 2
103-105, 326 2002 MCI Diesel 40' 4
TOTAL CONTINGENCY FLEET 6

TOTAL FLEET SIZE (ACTIVE + CONTINGENCY) 107

18 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




3.6/ Fares

In September 2021, DASH transitioned to 100% fare-free operations on all DASH buses. This change was
funded by an increase in the DASH subsidy from the City of Alexandria, and a grant award from the
Transit Ridership Incentive Program (TRIP) through the Virginia Department of Rail and Public
Transportation (DRPT). DASH continues to maintain fareboxes on all vehicles in its active revenue fleet
for ridership data collection purposes but is planning to remove fareboxes by July 2023 once automated
passenger counters (APC’s) have been installed on the entire fleet.

More information about the DASH Free Fares program can be found at www.dashbus.com/free.

3.7/ Funding

DASH service is operated by the Alexandria Transit Company (ATC), which is an independent public
service corporation that is owned by the City of Alexandria. The City provides extensive input and
guidance via the Transportation Planning Division of the city’s Department of Transportation &
Environmental Services. City staff play an integral role in supporting the DASH annual budget request
and managing a wide variety of state and regional grant programs.

The majority of annual DASH operating funds comes from an operating subsidy that is allocated each
year from the City of Alexandria’s General Fund. The city also provides funding for operations through
the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and for capital investments through the biennial Capital
Improvement Program (CIP) process.

Additional external sources of DASH funding include the Virginia Department of Rail and Public
Transportation (DRPT), the Virginia Smart Scale program, the Northern Virginia Transportation Authority
(NVTA), and the Northern Virginia Transportation Commission (NVTC) I-395 Commuter Choice Program.
DASH and the City of Alexandria are also in the process of establishing compliance with Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) regulations which would provide opportunities for additional federal discretionary
funding programs.

DASH also relies upon subsidies to operate specific services such as the free King Street Trolley for the
City of Alexandria. Additional revenue is also generated by bus charters for both public and private
events.

Passenger fare revenues previously covered between 15 and 20 percent of the annual DASH operating
costs and are used to reduce the DASH operating subsidy from the city. Since DASH is no longer
collecting fares, lost passenger revenues are offset by TRIP grant program funding from DRPT and an
increase in the annual city subsidy. A small amount of additional revenues are also generated from
external advertisements placed on DASH buses.

19 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




4.0 / System Performance

The following section uses FY 2022 system performance data to review DASH service with several key
metrics. The overall performance of a bus system is typically measured in terms of service provided
(revenue hours), service consumed (ridership), cost efficiency (boardings per revenue hour), and service
reliability (on-time performance, missed trips, road calls and customer feedback). Additional metrics
such as access and mobility that were highlighted during the ATV Plan are also important in determining
how well the transit network is meeting the needs of the community.

4.1/ Service Levels

In FY 2022, DASH operated roughly 290,000 platform hours of bus service, which was an improvement
over FY 2021 as ridership rose after the initial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Platform hours reflect
the total time that DASH buses are running, including revenue service when they are carrying
passengers, layover periods, and deadheads between trips or to/from the DASH garage . This service
total represents a 2% increase as compared to FY 2021 service levels. A graph showing the historic
trend in DASH annual platform hours for the last five years is shown in Figure 4-1. It should be noted
that the COVID “Omicron” surge from December 2021 to March 2022 resulted in reduced service levels
during FY 2022 due to staffing shortages.

Figure 4-1 / DASH Annual Platform Hours (FY 2018 - FY 2022)
350,000
300,000

250,000

200,000
150,000
100,000

50,000

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

o

20 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




4.2 / System Ridership

As shown in Figure 4-2, annual ridership has decreased over the last five years, with more significant
drops in the last two years with the onset of the COVID pandemic. In FY 2022, DASH recorded just over 3
million passenger boardings, which was up roughly 98% from FY 2021, but was still down by 20% from
before the pandemic (FY 2019). The ridership decrease in FY 2020 and FY 2021 can be largely attributed
to the COVID-19 pandemic; however, the sharp increase from FY2021 to FY2022 is largely due to the
effects of the New DASH Network and the DASH free fare program that was implemented in September
2021 as well as the ongoing recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. It should be noted that the COVID
“Omicron” surge from December 2021 to March 2022 resulted in reduced service levels and ridership
during FY 2022.

In terms of average daily boardings in FY 2022, DASH drew an average of 10,000 boardings on weekdays,
nearly 6,700 boardings on Saturdays, and approximately 5,150 boardings on Sundays. This translates to
an approximately 100% increase in weekday boardings from FY 2021. Average Saturday and Sunday
boardings were also up by 135% and 178%, respectively.

Figure 4 -2 / DASH Annual Ridership (FY 2018 - FY 2022)

4,500,000
4 3,873,488
0,000 3,765,059
3,500,000
3,019,825
3,000,000 2,844,989
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,521,938
1,500,000 .
1,000,000
FY18 FY19 FY20 Fy21 FY22

21 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




4.3 / Ridership by Route

At the route level, the New DASH Network routes show an overall productive ridership performance.
According to Figure 4-3, Line 35 has the highest daily ridership throughout the week with Lines 30, and
31 as the two next highest routes om both weekdays and weekends. The lowest weekday ridership is
seen on Lines 34, 102, 103, and 104. The lowest weekend ridership levels are found on Lines 32, 33 and
34.

Figure 4-3 / Average Ridership by Route (FY 2022)
4,000

3,540
3,500

3,000
2,500

2,000 1,917
1,822

1,638

1,500

1,159 1,160

1,000 ‘ 899

576 562
500 400

290
152138 §175 136 0 179 178 o
[ C 0
0 [ |

30 31 32 33 34 35 36 102 103 104 Trolley

H Weekday Saturday Sunday

Seminary Road & Janneys Lane Ridership

One of the key decisions made by the ATC Board of Directors as part of their decision to adopt the
Alexandria Transit Vision Plan in 2019 was to maintain local bus service on Seminary Road and Janneys
Lane between Howard Street and King Street. As a condition to this decision, the Board recommended
that the average weekday ridership on this corridor should be monitored on an annual basis with a
target increase of 20% over the following five years to ensure that the service was being sufficiently
utilized to warrant its continued operation.

Based on staff analyses, DASH estimates that Line 102 averaged roughly 20 boardings along this
segment in FY 2022. A more detailed analysis was conducted in Fall 2022 (FY 2023), which suggests that
an average of 23 boardings per weekday are taking place on Seminary Road/Janneys Lane between
Howard Street and King Street.

22 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Line 30 Ridership Improvement Analysis

More recently, DASH was able to implement service improvements on Line 30 in October 2022 based on
supplemental funding provided by Alexandria City Council. Preliminary ridership analysis from January
2023 indicates that the affected trips, which now operate between King Street Metro and Braddock
Road Metro during weekday peaks are carrying nearly 400 passengers on a typical weekday. Staff
anticipates that the ridership impact from these improvements will continue to increase in Spring 2023
when ridership tends to trend upward due to seasonal patterns.

4.4 / Cost Efficiency

In order to determine the cost efficiency of the system, ridership numbers must be compared to
revenue hours to determine how efficiently the system and its routes are operating. This metric is
typically expressed in boardings per revenue hour. In FY 2022, the DASH bus system drew approximately
10.7 boardings per revenue hour. This was an increase of over 47% from the 73 boardings per revenue
hours that were recorded in FY 2021.

Figure 4-4 / Average Boardings per Revenue Hour by Route and Day (FY 2022)

35.0

o

o

30.0

25.0

20.0

15.0

10, I _ 1

5’ I || I ||| I

|| I | ]
30 31 32 33 34 35 36 102 103 104

Trolley
B Weekday M Saturday M Sunday

Route-by-route boardings per revenue hour for weekdays, Saturdays, and Sundays in FY 2022 are shown
in Figure 4-4. Routes with the highest weekday productivity are Lines 30 and 35. The least productive
weekday routes are Lines 34 and 102 which each drew less than five boardings per revenue hour. On
weekends, Lines 35, 30, and 33 maintain the highest ridership productivity while Line 34 is the lowest.

Despite its post-pandemic ridership decreases, the King Street Trolley remains the most productive
route with more than 20 boardings per revenue hour on weekdays and Sundays and more than 30
boardings per revenue hour on Saturdays.

23 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




4.5 / Service Reliability

Service reliability can be measured by on-time performance, missed trip percentage, average miles per
road call, and customer feedback. It is important to note that service reliability is invariably tied to
service frequency since the consequences of a missed trip are far less significant if the next bus is only
10 or 15 minutes away instead of 60 minutes away.

On-Time Performance. The most common indicator for service reliability is on-time performance (OTP),
which measures the percentage of trips that are arriving at each time point within five minutes of their
scheduled arrival time. In FY 2022, approximately 86% of all DASH weekday trips arrived on time. This is
a slight decrease from the weekday on-time percentage for FY 2021, but it is still above the industry
standard of 85%. On weekends, DASH trips arrived on time 89% of the time on Saturdays and 90% of the
time on Sundays.

A chart showing FY 2022 weekday on-time performance by route is included in Figure 4-5. Most DASH
routes are shown to operate at or above the industry standard of 85% for most weekday time periods.
The most reliable routes in the system on weekdays are Lines 32 (92%), 35 (89%), and 104 (89%). The
On-Time performance appears to have decreased slightly across the board on weekdays due to the
resumption of normal day-to-day activities in the city after a recovery pattern from the pandemic.

The most challenging time of day for on-time performance is the weekday afternoon peak period from
3:00 PM to 6:00 PM due to heavy traffic congestion. In previous years, systemwide on-time performance
during the weekday PM peak periods has been less than 80%, however, in FY 2022, DASH service was
on-time 85% of the time during the afternoon peak, which was the same as it was in FY 2021.

Figure 4-5 / Weekday On-Time Performance by Route and Time Period (FY 2022)

100.0%
90.0%

80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%

0.0%

30 31 32 33 34 35 102 103 104

36A 36B KST

mAM Peak mMidday mPM Peak

24 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Miles Between Road Calls. Service reliability is also often impacted by the performance of the DASH
maintenance department, which is responsible for ensuring that buses are maintained in good operating
shape to minimize the chances for breakdowns and missed trips. In FY 2022, DASH averaged over 20,000
miles between road calls, which was an 11% improvement from the previous year and is well above the
industry average of 11,500 miles per road call.

Missed Trips. In terms of missed trips, DASH recorded just 0.042% missed trips in FY 2022, which was a
600% increase from the previous year. This significant change is likely due to staffing shortages that led
to missed work assignments and increased disruptions due to traffic that reflects a city recovering from
the pandemic and a resumption of normal day-day activities. Missed trips typically occur due to
manpower shortages, equipment failures, or traffic congestion.

Schedule Adherence Complaints. Another, more indirect measure of service reliability is customer
feedback. The DASH Customer Service Department is responsible for documenting and categorizing all
calls and e-mails that are received from passengers. In FY 2022, DASH received 46 valid complaints
related to “Schedule Adherence”. This was a major increase from the 17 schedule adherence
complaints that were received in FY 2021 and the 34 similar complaints that had been submitted in FY
2020. This uptick in complaints is like due to the increase in traffic due to the COVID recovery, and the
New DASH Network which included new routes on new segments that required adjustments in running
time after the first few months of operation.

4.6 / Access & Mobility

As discussed extensively in the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan, two of the most important performance
measures for a bus system are transit access and mobility. These metrics can measure how well a
transit system serves the community and the extent to which transit provides access to opportunities
(e.g. jobs, housing, schools, shopping centers, day cares, civic centers, etc).

Transit Access. In order for transit to be effective, it must be accessible to large numbers of residents,
jobs, and activity centers. It must also be useful and convenient. Figures 4-11 and 4-12 provide a
summary of access to the current DASH bus network for all residents, non-white residents, residents
living in households below the poverty threshold, and jobs in Alexandria. Access is measured by the
percentage of each group that are within a quarter-mile walking distance of transit service at 12pmon a
weekday, or the baseline off-peak service.

As shown in the figures below, both networks provide access to basic transit for the vast majority of
each of the groups identified below, however, the access to frequent all-day transit among these groups
was relatively low with the old DASH Network. Figure 4-12 shows the major increases in access to
frequent, all-day transit service that are now provided with the New DASH Network.

25 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Figure 4-6 — Public Transit Access in Alexandria

Percent of Residents within 1/4 Mile of a Bus Stop

All Residents Minority Low Income  Seniors (65+) Jobs

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

B Old Network M New Network

Figure 4-7 — Access to FREQUENT, ALL-DAY Transit Service in Alexandria

Percent of Residents within 1/4 Mile of a Bus Stop with "Frequent, All-
Day" Service

90%
0
s1% 78%
80% 73% 73%
70% oo
o

60%

50%
40%
40%
29%

27%

30% 24%

22%
20%

10%

All Residents Minority Low Income Seniors (65+) Jobs

0%

M Old Network ™ New Network

26 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Mobility. The second metric, mobility, can be derived from the isochrone maps that are included as
Figures 4-8, through 4-13. Each map assumes that a transit user — represented as a stick figure —is at a
selected location at a certain day and time. The colored isochrone shapes represent the approximate
area that can be reached from that specified location on the specified day and time using transit or
walking based trip times of 15 minutes (dark blue), 30 minutes (medium blue), 45 minutes (light blue),
and 60 minutes (red). The trip time calculation accounts for both travel time, and average waiting time
based on route frequencies. The larger the isochrone shape, the more access to locations with different
types of “opportunities” described above.

As an example, Figure 4-8 shows the mobility of a transit user in Old Town at the intersection of King
Street and Washington Street on weekdays during the PM peak period (5:00 PM), while Figure 4-14
shows the mobility from that same location at 12:00 PM on a Sunday. Since the service levels and
frequencies are increased during the peak period, passengers as this location can travel further within
the 30-minute window during the peak period, and the size of the isochrone shapes in the peak map are
larger. In other words, a passenger starting in Old Town could travel to Crystal City within 45 minutes
during peak periods, but it would take 60 minutes on a Sunday. The graphs also can be used in reverse
to show the areas from which one can get to the location (i.e. Old Town) within 15, 30, 45 and 60
minutes using transit.

While the size of the isochrone shapes illustrates how far a passenger can travel within 30 minutes using
transit, the number of opportunities (population, jobs, etc) within the shapes are even more important.
This measure more accurately reflects the actual access to opportunities that transit is providing to the
community.

4.7 / System Performance Summary

DASH system performance in FY 2022 was highlighted by major ridership gains that resulted from the
transition to free fares, the implementation of the New DASH Network and the ongoing recovery from
the COVID-19 pandemic. The increase in access to frequent, all-day bus service for 60,000 additional city
residents from the implementation of the New DASH Network remains particularly significant.

Service reliability metrics reflected a slight decrease in on-time performance and a sharper increase in
the number of missed trips due to operator staffing shortages. This was likely due to the return of
normal traffic congestion and ridership levels.

27 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Figure 4-8 / Transit Mobility to/from Old Town Alexandria (Weekday, 5:00 PM)

owr vszams b

alt Bailgy;s! Vit nia HEGhS ), i Py 4

Travel Time s~ Srossroads;

Haw far Jane can go via transit at 17:00
on a weekday.

Jane's walking route follows the %
pedestrian network. lransit line wait times | %
08 based on frequency.

Sunset Manor

S Terrags Claromont

TRAVF TINF POPUIATION
- @ 15min 12,708
re @ 30min 46,782 5
45mmin 188,720 :
¥ 60 min 588,096 q.é
Pincciest 3
Na

Cameron :
0 i SO ok Park

GO iaods 3 Rursuncyilaoe] ‘Q-—I-x /

Bron Mar Park
o

Figure 4-9 / Transit Mobility to/from Old Town Alexandria (Sunday, 12:00 PM)

Travel Time /

Haw far Jane can o via transit at 12:00
on  Sunday.

Jane's walking coute follows the s erase) Garemant
pedestrian network. Transit line wait times

a2 basad on frequancy.

-
TRAVFL TIMF POPUIATION
RE @ 15min 11,004
s @ 30mn 39,507
45 min 146,407
5 40 min 465,268 > R b
v rnecest w Cresgesque
i ” Ep woopal st }‘w,,.,-
B Vigh St o3 :

u
fhe
L
§ Weyaroke
J a5 s
lard %, Lincolnia'Park & 2
Dalocrost o) ¥
1 5.<~L.‘\ Deta 5 G
Weke er 51 College Paik
DY Gt -
Por.Cy brewirg e rronyalioy
Camzry =
4 . E B,
Plam Tha S 4
Bren Mar Park BurgundyVilsoe eyl
Clormont Woods 2
ety s
Coprat B £
J Cannon
., Oskunosd Vinslow Hills Yol T Coomt _
Caph\ B8 MBunt Hobron Park & AR Franconia Rd
= & JeFerson Manor
Brookland Estates. Rose Hill poree Witon Sieecs)
Yorkmnor B . R 2000t A
fAPLE GROVE ot
e mix4 ESTATES Silver Springs | Safeway 2 © Mapbus & OpenS ree Mop

28 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Figure 4-10 / Transit Mobility to/from Southern Towers (Weekday, 5:00 PM)

Adington o East botomes BUZZARD
ith Veé Boulevard POINT
wur  Travel Time A
How far Jane can go via transit at 17:00 BARRY
on a weekday. Naval Support FARMS
Facility Anacostia
o . Army Navyj St. Elizabeth’s
R Walking distance is based on how far Country Clb Campus West
1 +
Jane can go using the pedestrian DCA ‘,)3
network. Uses average wait times based g
on the frequency of routes. &
Y CONGRESS
E HEIGHTS
3
TRAVEL TIME POPULATION A = @
. : Bolling Air &
@® 15min 20,897 \ Force Base &
5
@ 30min 123,668 Parklawn ¢ g& WASHINGTOM
i > <
~ 45 min 296,421 Braddock Hights HIGHLANDS
60 min 440,707 Oak"eﬂ | BELLEVUE
¥ .
Willow,Run
Chmqudpln Village Braddock
=5t Annandale Acres \¥eyancke Glassmanor
Blue Plains
DC Water

Treatment Plant

Fairland
jan Ror Rosemont
addock Rd Indian Springs \aseianierk 2 ;
Legwood Edsall Ry
eld
Bren|MarPark Burgundy Village
peltway Clermont Woods
Capita!
Onewory Cannon
Mount Hebron Park
Springfield Brookland Estates Rose Hill
m Yates Village Yermanor Penn Daw Village Belle Haven
3 Franconia
N R
{ox: oni@
22X U@Varcmm\n Al Frane Aem Virginia Hills

Figure 4-11 / Transit Mobility to/from Southern Towers (Sunday, 12:00 PM)

o
\GHFS
ALCOVA

tast Fotomac

N Adington| B

Oxon Cove Park

Forest Heights

Oxor

SOUTH LA

North,Potomac Vista

NatiGnal
HAHB000 ft

© Mapbox € OpenStrgetMap

BUZZARD
POINT

it UeefBoulevard )
@lHeights ,,}\\‘/ | A
wuri  Travel Time , HEIGHTS) n
How far Jane can go via transit at 12:00 B cienon [} BARRY
on a sunday. Virginia Highlands. L &S Naval Support . FARMS
% Facility Anacostia
B'ARCROFET: Army Navyj '‘Addison Heights| r S St. Elizabeth's
Walking distance is based on how far o Country Club; PR & o Campus West
&=
Jane can go using the pedestrian DOUGLASS % DCA ‘,,3
network. Uses average wait times based bft é g
on the frequency of routes. & 3
Henty sV alley = I eoncaies
W, I 3 HEIGHTS
TRAVEL TIME POPULATION %, B i
e Bolling Air &
@ 15min 21,877 fory Parkfa:r(ax Force Base &
&
i Parkl s
@® 30min 126,074 arklawn ¢ & WASHINGTO}
3 <
v 45 min 275,419 Braddock ngms \ HIGHLANDS
60 min 421,247 O«kﬂeﬂ BELLEVUE /
Willow,Run
Chinguapin Vﬂage 3
25t Annandale Acres [Woyanoka SSSem 1WAt V%) Glassmanor
3 Blue Plains
DC Water

Fairand!
Treatment Plant

Clover.

7
indianiRun Parky 1955

addock Rd Indian Springs
Leewood,  iipy i
ald i
Lunt}_ Y \J] !
Bren Mar,Park Burgundy Village q o)
| geltwiey Clermont Woods - R
Capitd B
Oakwood Cannon Huntington
Mount Hebron Park
Springfield Brookland|Estates Rose Hill
m Yates Village Torkmance Penn Daw Village Belle Haven
Franconia
)i acorta RS
- e ra! 23 Virginia Hills

29 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)

Forest Heights
Oxon Cove Park

Oxor

SOUTH LA

North,Potomac Vista

National
Hab 83000 ft
Nt

© Mapbox © OpenStrgetMap




Figure 4-12 / Transit Mobility to/from Arlandria (Weekday, 5:00 PM)

B tast Potomac
v AdingEr o HETG HITS > k PoONT.
it f Lee Boulevard )
- Heights ALCOVA S A
wr Travel Time HEIGHTS] .
How far Jane can go via transit at 17:00 Glengarlyn T BARRY
on a weekday. Naval Support FARMS
Y Chlumbia feights ergmla Highlands Facility Anacosta
Culmnre BARCROFT, by N.-)vy WAddison Height St Elizabeth's
R Walking distance is based on how far Country Club, Campus West
1 +
Jane can go using the pedestrian Ba s!eylsd DOUGLASS DCA S
network. Uses average wait times based Crossroa S BARK fo
on the frequency of routes. s
Sunset Mo :
Claremont ‘_:J CONGRESS
£ HEIGHTS
TRAVEL TIME POPULATION 1 @
Bolling Air &
. 15 min 13,713 Dowden Terrace: Force Base &
o ‘!) 5
i Parkla Y ‘J G
® 30min 52,649 rklawn & WASHINGTO!
z \ <
o 45 min 122,816 3 Bfaddock. Hegm HIGHLANDS
5 W)
) of X\
60 min 253,748 & kcrest ‘ BELLEVUE
act
Willow Run
Chinquapin\Village
Weyanoke mecima Glassmanor
8lue Plains
DC Water

2st Annandale Acres
af\e’

Dalecrest;

WaRerel GD\““-.

Fairand

Clover;

IndianSprings  'ndian Run Park

addock Rd
Cameron\Valley
Leewood ¢y e e i,
ald
Lunty Y
Bren Mar Park Burgundy Village
L gettwdy Clermont Woods
Capiel
B aiowocd Cannon
Mount Hebron Park
Springfield Brookland Estates Rose Hill
m Yates Village Yermanor Penn Daw Village Belle Haven
Franconia
R
x onie
@3 U@J@%W Franc A m Virginia Hills

Treatment Plant

Forest Heights
Oxon Cove Park

Oxor

SOUTH LA

North,Potomac Vista

NatiGnal

HAbE3000 ft
e

© Mapbox € OpenStrgetMap

Figure 4-13 / Transit Mobility to/from Arlandria (Sunday, 12:00 PM)

Adington o

X

S
\GHDS
ALCOVA

HEIGHTS]

Lee Boulevard
Heights

ith
wur Travel Time
Glengarlyn

How far Jane can go via transit at 12:00
onasunday. Chlumbia'ieights rsinia Highlande LS 2
Culore ARCROFET; 'Army Navyj Addison Heights r )4
. Walking distance is based on how far Sountry U 23«1 SuS NS
Jane can go using the pedestrian & aileys' DOUGLASS S DzA
Cro sroads PARK

network, Uses average wait times based

on the frequency of routes.
Claremont.

bl
/ sumettta B
ol

TRAVEL TIME POPULATION
@® 15min 13,713 Dowden Terrace
@® 30min 43,539 parklawn
~ 45 min 110,561 Bfad Voo
Oakcrest

Chinquapin\Village

60 min 217,499 &
act
Willow Run \
Weyancks Lln‘cc!ma

s5t Annandale Acres
T\eg
Figand va‘» \Duke b Dalecrest
5
addock Rd indianiprings.  MoanRun Park o) ’ w\\kcf.cwd{“ﬂ.-» Clover,
{¥awood Edsall Ry '
eld
LuntY
Bren Mar Park Burgundy Village
ey Clermont Woods
capa'®
Y s Cannon
Mount Hebron Park
Springfield Brookland Estates Rose Hill
m Yates Village ek raros Penn Daw Village _#Belle Haven
Franconia
Virginia Hills

d
remixd fraccore®

30 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)

East Fotomac Uiz
POINT
A
BARRY.
Naval Support  FARMS
Facility Anacostia
St. Elizabeth’s
Campus West
3
2
&
Y CONGRESS
;- HEIGHTS
3
&
Bolling Air &
ForcaBase &
2
&
& WASHINGTO!
N HIGHLANDS
BELLEVUE
Glassmanor
Blue Plains
DC Water
Treatment Plant

Forest Heights
Oxon Cove Park

Oxor

SOUTH LA

NorthiPotomac Vista

National

HALS000 ft
G

Mapbox & OpenStrgetMap




5.0 / Service & Fare Recommendations

The following section provides recommendations for future DASH service changes and fare adjustments
over the next six years. These recommendations are primarily based on the Alexandria Transit Vision
Plan, staff analyses, and guidance from the General Manager and ATC Board of Directors.

The recommendations are organized chronologically, beginning with FY 2024. Service and fare
recommendations for the rest of the six-year plan cycle (FY 2025 — FY 2029) are also included later in the
section.

5.1/ Service Recommendations (FY 2024)

For its FY 2024 service recommendations, this document outlines two scenarios: (1) a “Baseline” or
“Current Services” scenario which includes no increases or reductions to DASH service and is based on
the preliminary FY 2024 budget; and (2) an “Unfunded ATV Improvements” scenario which essentially
includes all the remaining service improvements that were recommended by the 2022 ATV Plan but
have not yet been implemented.

Both scenarios include the existing enhanced service on Lines 35 and 36A/B, which are currently funded
via the FY 2022 — FY 2023 NVTC I-95/395 Commuter Choice Program. This program requires that
agencies who are receiving funding must reapply every two years through a competitive award process.
DASH has resubmitted both projects and award decisions will be made in the spring. If DASH does not
receive funding for one or both projects, major service reductions on these routes could be required.

Both scenarios also assume bus stop consolidations and improvements which are also summarized
below.

FY 2024 “Baseline” Current Services Scenario

The FY 2024 Baseline/Current Services Scenario assumes no changes from current FY 2023 service levels.
Under this scenario, DASH projects to operate approximately 325,000 platform hours and 3.05 million
platform miles in FY 2024. This represents a 1% increase from the annualized amount for FY 2023.

These baseline service totals include the Line 35 and 36A/B service enhancements from the 1-395
Commuter Choice program that were implemented with the launch of the New DASH Network. As noted
previously, the continuation of enhanced service on each of these routes is contingent upon the receipt
of funding through the FY 2024 — FY 2025 NVTC 1-95/395 Commuter Choice program.

DASH is also applying for a third project through the 1-395 Commuter Choice program that would fund
the purchase of five (5) 60-foot articulated buses that would be deployed to Line 35 to provide
additional passenger capacity along the busiest corridor in the DASH system. If not awarded, DASH will
need to look for other ways to address the overcrowding on Line 35, which could potentially include
additional trips

31 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




FY 2024 “Unfunded ATV Improvements” Scenario

DASH launched the New DASH Network and transitioned to fare-free operations in September 2021.
This transition represented the first phase of the 2022 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan but did not include
all of the service improvements that were identified by the 2022 ATV Plan due to budget constraints.

The Unfunded FY 2023 ATV Improvements Scenario includes a series of service increases that were
recommended as part of the 2022 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan but could not be implemented in FY
2022 or FY 2023 due to funding constraints. These unfunded improvements would represent
approximately 13,000 additional annual platform hours and would require an additional $1.61m of
annual operating funding that is not included in the preliminary FY 2024 DASH budget.

Under the FY 2024 Unfunded ATV Improvements scenario, DASH would operate approximately 338,000
platform hours and 3.17 million platform miles. These totals represent a four (4) percent increase from
the baseline FY 2024 scenario. These service totals also include the Line 35 and 36A/B service
enhancements from the 1-395 Commuter Choice program that were discussed in previous sections

FY 2024 Unfunded ATV Improvements

The following unfunded service improvements are included in the 2022 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan
that was adopted by the ATC Board of Directors in 2019 but have not yet been implemented. DASH is
proposing to implement the following service improvements in FY 2024 if supplemental funding is
identified by City Council and made available to DASH.

The following improvements are shown in order of priority in Table 5-1A/B and as maps in Figures 5-1
through 5-4.

1. Line 33 —Improve Sunday headways from every 60 minutes to every 30 minutes to provide
better weekend service to the new Potomac Yard Metro from Arlandria and Del Ray.

2. Line 34 — Improve Sunday headways from every 60 minutes to every 30 minutes to provide
better weekend service to the new Potomac Yard Metro from Old Town Alexandria.

3. Line 31 - Extend weekend and off-peak short trips from King Street Metro to Braddock Road
Metro to provide service into Old Town every 15 minutes instead of every 30 minutes. for
15 min headways in Old Town.

4. Line 32 - Improve midday, evening, and weekend service to run every 30 minutes instead of
every 60 minutes for more convenient service between Landmark Mall and King Street
Metro via Eisenhower Avenue.

32 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Each of the above “unfunded” improvements are summarized in the following section and maps.
1. Increase Sunday service on Line 33 to every 30 minutes. Line 33 runs every 30 minutes
between King Street Metro and Potomac Yard via Del Ray and Arlandria all day on weekdays and
Saturdays. As shown in Figure 5-1, DASH is proposing to increase Sunday service on Line 33 to
run every 30 minutes instead of the current schedule that runs once per hour. This
improvement would provide a more consistent schedule, seven days per week, and would

provide a more useful connection from Del Ray and Arlandria to the new Potomac Yard
Metrorail station on Sundays.

Figure 5-1 / Proposed Line 33 Improvements (UNFUNDED)

£
S
[
t sms Line 33 (Improved)
VG"% POTOMAC
9$0H.RMNDRIA YARD
Parkfairfax | T
ILynhaven A m
) [ |
L] | ]
ui! 1=
Brad Lee Braddock Helg hts E"I.me
=1
Oakcrest DEL RAY E:
i
Z\
rt =
[ |
2 | |
Chinquapin Village Braddock '---‘
i
H |
it -
fﬁd Rosemont & U
Delta Clover ‘94} l‘ F
1 T
Cameron Valley L =
DLJJ{'Q Sf M .
A Alexandria
KING
R STREET
fremix;
BurgundyWilage ™ .

33 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




2. Increase Sunday service on Line 34 to every 30 minutes. In additional the alignment changes

that are planned for Line 34 to provide better service to the new Potomac Yard Metrorail
station, DASH also proposes that Line 34 should run every 30 minutes on Sundays instead of the
current hourly schedule. This improvement would provide a more consistent schedule, seven
days per week, and would provide a more useful connection from Old Town and Old Town

North to the new Potomac Yard Metrorail station on Sundays. A map of this improvement is
included as Figure 5-2.

Figure 5-2 / Proposed Line 34 Improvements (UNFUNDED)

82 Parkfairfax
| Lynhaven
POTOMAC
sus Line 34 (Improved) g
-
|
d Lee Braddock Heights 0 4 142 Hume :
[ |
B
Oakecrest '
]
|}
| |
]
Chinquapin Village raddoc X ..
2
. ]
& ]
P ¥
; ;
’f_’ffg Rosemont & 8
9 Clover g = '.
'1": ]
< ]
Cameron Valley - :
Puke st .
Alexa nd'na
e [ |
o | |
i LEE § itmmy,
Dreguricy m”.ag--e n G CENTER 'J"f-"--:'
[remix ity
: &l

34 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




3. Improve off-peak service frequency on Line 31. Line 31 runs east-west from NVCC-Alexandria
to Braddock Road Metro via King Street and Old Town, as shown in Figure 5-3. This route is
another critical east-west connection between West Alexandria, Central Alexandria and Old
Town.

DASH proposes to improve extend all off-peak Line 31 trips from King Street Metro to Braddock
Road Metro via City Hall to enhance the Old Town Circulator (OTC) service and provide better
connectivity and more one-seat rides from West Alexandria into Old Town. Currently, Line 30
runs every 15 minutes during middays and weekends from NVCC to King Street Metro, but only
every 30 minutes from the King Street Metro to Braddock Road Metro in Old Town. The
proposed improvements would extend all off-peak Line 31 trips to Braddock Road Metro to
provide trips every 10-15 minutes along the entire route for all trips, seven days per week.

Figure 5-3 / Proposed Line 31 Improvements (UNFUNDED)

\ It; gellefonte Ave
dsLn
== |ine 31 (No Change) fiode  DelRay L8
5 =Le[s[e]a -
" amn Line 31/OTC (Improved) &
= 3
o 29
® ¥
BRADDOCK 2 z
ROAD 5 p]
™M, 2
..-é ontge, hr:‘n’y.l_c.r.. %
Ty gy . =
Rosemont '-—..._# o
College Park o g <
(2] = ] =
A EANES '
& & 3 an
= z 0N
an V:I”l?}r George Washington =z = = a g
c Masonic National ;:f : [ T
-Olvin 5t | Memoaorial $. .90
Duke St e ------EiNG .' - _59
Pr TNlexandria ¥ 7=
KING ce'st exanaria v
STREET
ve Q—b Duke 5,

o Ail
& Wilkes ¢,

%
S Pitt 54
S Fairfa 5t
5 Unigp S
D
(=}
(=]
= |
-+

on St

© Mapbox © OpenStreetMap

35 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




4. Increase weekday midday, evening, and Sunday service on Line 32. Line 32 runs east-west

from Landmark Mall to King Street Metro via Eisenhower Avenue, as shown in Figure 5-4. The
current service runs every 30 minutes during weekday peaks, but only once per hour during
weekday middays, evenings, and weekends. DASH proposes to add more trips on Line 32 so that

it runs every 30 minutes, all-day, seven days per week. These improvements will provide more
useful, consistent DASH service for communities along North Ripley Street, Holmes Run

Parkway, South Pickett Street, and many of the new developments in the Eisenhower Valley and
near the Eisenhower Metrorail Station.

Figure 5-4 / Proposed Line 32 Improvements (UNFUNDED)

i Oakcrest
wmn Line 32 [Improued] Piney Court
Chinquapin Village Braddock
Seminary Valley -
o » A
**“LANDMARK %, oy =
i Ly by’ Dalecrest 8
euke % [ ] "
'-" Del ");9 Rosemont
1 Wakefield Elta Clover 5
ﬁ";: KING
o‘;“t Cameron Valley STREET
"‘ E DI]J:(E‘ StEISEN- m‘
» IS HOWER
v van L T ENHOWER AVE ¥
i -
Cameron DORN an®

gy
.-I-----.-‘-- s*
$ » .-MJ
Lunt B ..m
ram

Burgundy Village

Clermont Woods C‘% ;
a iz
apra B 2000 ft /5
o) Estsiad (5 ez Cannon

[
© Mapbox © OpenStreetMap

B alaiiala]

A summary table of the proposed improvements that would be included in the FY 2023 Unfunded ATV
Improvements scenario is included as Tables 5-1A and 5-1B. These improvements are listed in priority

order in the even that some additional funding is available but not enough for all the service increases to
be implemented.

36 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Table 5-1A / Unfunded ATV Improvements Scenario (Overview)

Priority Order

Net Annual Platform

(1=top Line # Areas Served Proposed Improvement Net Annual Cost
- Hours -
priority) -
FY 2024 DASH Supplemental Requests
. Del Ray, Arlandria, Potomac | Sunday service improved to run every 30 minutes instead of every 60 minutes
1 Line 33 ) o 945 $120,000
Yard to provide better connectivity to new Potomac Yard Metro
Potomac Yard, Old Town Sunday service improved to run every 30 minutes instead of every 60 minutes
2 Line 34 : v nP Y Y 963 $120,000
North, City Hall, Lee Center to provide better connectivity to new Potomac Yard Metro
Extend offpeak/weekend short trips from King Street Metro to Braddock Road
3 Line31  |NVCC, King Street, Old Town peak/w norttrip & , 7,196 $880,000
Metro for 15 minute service in Old Town; extend weekday evening hours.
Eisenhower Valley,
Improve midday, evening and weekend service from every 60 minutes to
4 Line 32 Landmark Mall, Van Dorn P ¥ g . ! ¥ 3,989 $490,000
every 30 minutes.
Metro, Carlyle
FY 2024 DASH Supplemental Requests 13,093 51,610,000

37 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Table 5-1B / Unfunded ATV Improvements Scenario (Details)

DASH FY 2024 UNFUNDED ATV IMPROVEMENTS

DASH Service Planning Decision Framework (1)

Ridership

Equity (2)

Impact/Alternatives

Cost Efficiency

Priority Order

Net Change in

Low Income

Residents within_

Minority Residents

Description of Benefit / Cost of

Annual Cost Per Add'l

1=to Line # Areas Served Proposed Improvement Annual Boardings ) within 1/4 mile ) Boarding (Lower =
(i=top Line # Areas Served Froposedimprovement : 1/4 mile . Not Improving Boarding (Lower=
priority) (Projected) (City Avg = 10.3% City Avg = 48.1% More Cost Efficient
y g = 2 0[
FY 2024 DASH Supplemental Requests
o ) . Shorter waits for buses on
. Sunday service improved to run every 30 minutes instead of every R .
. Del Ray, Arlandria, . ) . Sundays in Del Ray, Arlandria;
1 Line 33 60 minutes to provide better connectivity to new Potomac Yard 11,000 7% 38% . $10.91
Potomac Yard Metro better Sunday service to new PY
Metro
PotomacYard, Old | Sunday service improved to run every 30 minutes instead of every Shorter waits for buses on
2 Line 34 Town North, City Hall,| 60 minutes to provide better connectivity to new Potomac Yard 7,000 7% 39% Sundays in Old Town; better $17.14
Lee Center Metro Sunday service to new PY Metro
NVCC. King Street Extend offpeak/weekend short trips from King Street Metro to More one-seat trips from King St
3 Line 31 Olld wan ! Braddock Road Metro for 15 minute service in Old Town; extend 47,000 11% 31% to Old Town; better connections $18.72
weekday evening hours. to West End; more frequent OTC
Short its for b
Eisenhower Valley, Improve midday, evening and weekend service from every 60 E'sZn:;w:rI/i Z; :S:Sr'onn
V 1 , eV I Wi I Vi 1 Wi \ 1
a line32 | Landmark Mall, Van P v, evening ‘ v 26,000 10% 56% _ nue during $18.85
minutes to every 30 minutes. middays, evenings and
Dorn Metro, Carlyle
weekends.
FY 2024 DASH Supplemental Requests 91,000 10% 45% $17.69

38 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




FY 2024 Bus Stop Consolidations & Improvements

DASH is working with City staff to inventory, assess, and consolidate bus stops in numerous locations
throughout the service area and to improve access and passenger amenities for the remaining stops. In
many locations in Old Town and throughout the City, DASH bus stops are currently spaced extremely
close together — often within one block or less — which can increase overall travel times and make the
service less useful to the average rider. DASH will review ridership data collected since the launch of the
New DASH Network to identify potential stops for potential consolidation. If a bus stop is identified for
potential consolidation or removal, any affected passengers will be notified at least two weeks in
advance and will be provided an opportunity to provide feedback.

In conjunction with the bus stop consolidation project, DASH will work with the City of Alexandria to
identify bus stop improvements at consolidated stops, high ridership stops, stops with poor pedestrian
accessibility, and stops that lack amenities. Potential improvements include shelter/bench installations,
parking space removals, and passenger pad or “bulb out” construction. Bus “bulb-outs” or curb
extensions can be particularly useful in congested urban areas like Old Town because they provide safe,
accessible bus stops with minimal impact on parking spaces. Based on a recent survey, DASH and the
City of Alexandria have prioritized bus stop accessibility and the provision of basic amenities like
shelters, benches, and lighting in the coming year.

5.2 / Fare Recommendations (FY 2024)

As part of the FY 2024 budget, DASH will continue as a 100% fare-free operation, as was first introduced
in September 2021 with the New DASH Network. The fare-free program will continue at least through FY
2025 as funded by the Transit Ridership Incentive Program (TRIP) from the Virginia Department of Rail

and Public Transportation (DRPT) with local support from the City of Alexandria.

No additional fare adjustments are proposed for FY 2024.

39 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




5.3/ Service Recommendations (FY 2025 — FY 2029)

For FY 2025 — FY 2029, DASH will continue working to implement the recommendations of the
Alexandria Transit Vision Plan, including any “Unfunded ATV Improvements” from the 2022 ATV Plan
that could not be implemented in earlier years. Ultimately, DASH will be seeking to fully realize the 2030
ATV Plan that was approved by the ATC Board of Directors in 2019. Additional information on the
Alexandria Transit Vision Plan project, process, outcomes, and final report can be found at the ATV
project website: www.dashbus.com/transitvision.

The full list of proposed FY 2025 DASH service changes includes:

e Line 30. Line 30 operates from Van Dorn Metro and Landmark Mall to Braddock Road via Duke
Street and Old Town. In FY 2025, DASH is planning to implement major off-peak service
enhancements on the routes so that it would run every 15 minutes during weekday middays,
evenings, and weekends. This is a major improvement over the existing off-peak service that
operates every 30 minutes along one of the more productive transit corridors in the City. This
will also be a critical improvement to help build ridership in the future Duke Street BRT corridor.

e Line 32. Inthe New DASH Network, DASH introduced Line 32 service along Eisenhower Avenue,
but due to budget constraints, it was only able to operate from Landmark Mall to King Street
Metro. In FY 2025, DASH proposes to extend Line 32 from King Street Metro to Braddock Road
Metro and combine it with Lines 30 and 31 to increase the frequency of the Old Town Circulator.
Along with the previous Line 32 service improvements proposed in FY 2023, these changes will
provide better service to the new developments in Eisenhower East and Carlyle.

e Line 103. Line 103 is a weekday peak service running every 30 minutes between Braddock Road
Metro and the Pentagon Metro via Arlandria. In FY 2025, the service headways are proposed to
be improved to run every 20 minutes, similar to AT-3 peak service prior to the COVID pandemic.

e Line 104. Line 104 is a weekday peak service running every 30 minutes between Braddock Road
Metro and the Pentagon Metro. In FY 2025, the headways are proposed to be improved to run
every 20 minutes, similar to AT-4 peak service prior to the COVID pandemic.

o WMATA Better Bus Network Project. DASH will also continue to work closely with WMATA and
other regional partners in the ongoing development of the “Better Bus Network” regional bus
network redesign project, which could have major impacts for future bus service in Alexandria
and the greater Washington D.C. region. The first phase of route changes resulting from this
project could be implemented as early as FY 2025. More information about WMATA's “Bus
Transformation Project can be found at: https://bustransformationproject.com/.

For FY 2026, DASH proposes the following additional service changes, which begin to incorporate parts
of the 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan:

e Line 32. In FY 2026, DASH proposes to increase weekday peak service on Line 32 from every 30
minutes to every 15 minutes. This will improve connectivity along the Eisenhower Avenue
Corridor, including major new developments at Landmark Mall, South Van Dorn Street,
Eisenhower Valley, Eisenhower East, and Carlyle. Contingent upon the King Street Trolley

40 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




extension outlined below, the route alignment of Line 32 would also be adjusted in the Carlyle
area so that it runs via Duke Street, John Carlyle Street, and Eisenhower Avenue.

o King Street Trolley. For FY 2026, DASH proposes to extend the King Street Trolley from the King
Street Metro to the Eisenhower Metro. This route extension will require up to three additional
Trolley vehicles, which will be 100% electric as part of the larger effort to transition the Trolley
fleet to electric buses. DASH will also seek to expand morning service hours for the Trolley and
to find ways to integrate it more fully with the Old Town Circulator service. These trolley
changes and any further changes to Trolley service will require additional funding, further
coordination with city leadership, and approval by City Council.

For FY 2027, FY 2028, and FY 2029, additional service change proposals will be made to advance the
implementation of the 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan network based on available funding. An
overview of the 2030 ATV Plan network is provided below. Additional potential service improvements
related to the West End Transitway and Duke Street BRT are also described at the end of this section.

2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Plan

The 2030 ATV Network represents the ultimate vision for the new ridership-oriented bus network while
providing frequent, all-day bus service across most of the city. Many of the routes in the 2030 network
are similar to the routes from the 2022 New DASH Network, but with additional frequency
improvements. Figures 5-5 and 5-6 show the new 2030 network during peak and midday time periods,
respectively, while Figure 5-7 shows the service frequencies and hours of operations for all DASH and
WMATA routes.

The 2030 ATV Network was designed to be implemented by 2030, however, some of the improvements
could be introduced during the latter part of the FY 2024 — FY 2029 period covered by this TDP if funding
is available. One major component of the 2030 ATV Network that may be implemented earlier than
2030 is the West End Transitway. The capital improvements for the West End Transitway could be
completed as early as 2025, in which case, the new “N9” West End Transitway route could be
implemented at that time, as well as the corresponding changes to the “N8”, “N10” and “N11” routes.

Full information about the 2030 ATV Plan can be found at www.dashbus.com/transitvision.

Additional projects that will be relevant to the implementation of the 2030 ATV Plan are noted below:

e West End Transitway. The City of Alexandria is actively planning to build the West End
Transitway, a high-capacity BRT service that would operate along the 1-395 corridor between
Alexandria and the Pentagon. The original route began at the Van Dorn Metro with stops at
Landmark, Mark Center, Southern Towers and Shirlington Transit Center before reaching the
Pentagon. The West End Transitway would replace portions of the DASH Line 35 with a modified
routing pattern, more service during weekday peak periods, and more investment in bus
prioritization and stop amenities. Additional route adjustments to the New DASH Network
structure along Beauregard Street near Lincolnia and King Street will be required in conjunction
with the start of West End Transitway service, which is expected to begin in FY 2027.

Although a specific transit provider has not been identified to operate this service, DASH is well-
positioned for this opportunity due to its other nearby services and cost efficiency. Operating

41 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




funds for this service have not yet been identified, but the 1-395 Commuter Choice program and
other state and regional funding sources will be actively pursued.

o Duke Street Bus Rapid Transit (BRT). The City of Alexandria was recently recommended to
receive $75 million in NVTA grant funding for the design and construction of the first phase of
the Duke Street BRT, which is scheduled for completion by 2027. This project could provide
dedicated transit lanes, bus prioritization, and other capital improvements that will increase bus
speeds, reliability and convenience between Landmark Mall and King Street Metro. These
improvements could greatly benefit the future operations of the DASH and Metrobus service
along this corridor.

DASH and City staff are currently working on developing a service plan and timeline for how

future bus service along this corridor will be designed and what the timeline for the service
improvements will be.

5.4 / Future Fare Change Recommendations (FY 2025 — FY 2029)

No future changes are proposed or planned for FY 2024 to FY 2028 at this time.

Per the terms of the DRPT Transit Ridership Incentive Program (TRIP), DASH must operate with free
fares through FY 2025. The decision process for the free fares program and relevant criteria and
considerations are outlined in the DASH Free Fares Framework policy that was adopted by the ATC

Board of Directors in 2021.

The full “DASH Free Fares Framework” policy document can be reviewed at www.dashbus.com/free.

42 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Figure 5-5 / 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Network — Peak Service

10a

RONALD REAGAN

BAILEY'S
CROSSROADS|, 2387 WASHINGTON
Any changes to routes outside of 284 . SHIRLINGTON NATIONAL AIRPORT

Alexandia will be coordinated with the
appropriate jurisdiction and WIMATA
(where applicable).

N,
=W
ARLANDRIA Muy, \
238 . -
10e

Fxisting Arlingten Transit (ART) routes are
assumed fo remain the same.

Service continuing to
Pentagon Station
Duke: 21a, 210 v

Seminary: N27, 7m, 8z, 8w \ W > = 0 L i \ roiAC Yaro
King: 28G S N\ ~Z LAY \
Shirlington: N9, 7v, 22c, 22r \l

Parkfairfax: N23, N24

.,-

29kN
SEMINARY
HILL

EISENHOWER
VAL EYa

SOUTHWEST;

T
ISENHOWER \ QUADRANT
. AvENUE )
55 ) 195 NH2
~
g - _— HIJNTINGION
Alexandria Transit Vision 5
2030 Peak Network . Hunting
N - d
Peak Frequency _@_ I\ile;c_roral\ line + @ To Pentagon Station T ¢‘\\ 1
station !

== 8 min or better o Office/Mixed Use ~ *KST is the extended King Street Trolley.
-~ 0-12mi (i) Metroway #+OTC -Old Town Circulator- is a combination

-12 min old T : Residential Complex of routes N3 and N4. Anyone on these routes

own Circulator p e o A h
igh the King 5t. Metro into Old
-m- 15 min o R il Town without transferring.
= == == Express Service etail Center
_@_ 20 min P . T g P @ \ 05 1 mi
©)  Educational Institution e sesimed o semai thesomer | ! j

—E[~ 30min

43 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Figure 5-6 / 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Network — Midday Service

Any changes to routes oulside of
Alexandria will be coordinated with the
appropriate jurisdiction and WIMATA
(where applicable).

assumed to remain the same.

r-' LINCOLNIA
3
i Ll

N8

29kN

BAILEY'S
CROSSROADS 7

Existing Arlington Transit (ART) routes are

] - y o

! 2 SV LANDMARK N

i 5, NG TAYLOR

Ve YR 20kn L 2oA RUN | ocee

k AN \ ) A _—

N N_ Kine Stecepéd
EISENHOWER _ ———
VALLEY 77 |-

108 10a
22 :
« 2387 238
SHIRLINGTON \\
7 10a8 R
....... - N

ARLANDRIA Nay
238 =

SEMINARY
HILL

EISENHOWER. A
AVENUE - SOUTHWEST:
~390,4. QUADRANT

NH2

Midday Frequency
== 8 min or better
-@— 10-12 min
£~ 15min
—€&D- 20 min
£~ 30min

HunTinGTON| m

Alexandria Transit Vision

2030 Midday Network

Metrorail line +
station

€[ WMATA Route
Metroway
Old Town Circulator
Note: This map only shows routing that

aperate all-day. For peak-only routes,
see 2030 Peak Network map.

To Pentagon Station
Office/Mixed Use 2
Residential Complex

Retail Center

Existing Fairfax Connector routes
are assumed to remain the same.

Educational Institution

00606

RONALD REAGAN
WASHINGTON
NATIONAL AIRPORT

N e
Poromac YarD
METRO,

)

*KST is the extended King Street Tralley.

**OTC -Old Town Circulator- is a combination
of routes N3 and N4. Anyone on these routes
«can ride through the King St. Metro into Old
Town without transferring.

0 0.5 T mi
| | |

44 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Figure 5-7 / 2030 Alexandria Transit Vision Network — Frequency Table

Alexandria 2030 Network Route Frequencies
WEEKDAYS - : - SATURDAYS - 1 - SUNDAYS

5 6 7 8 £l o n 1\.2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 a9 1w n :'2 1 2 5v$7f.\ﬂlﬂ‘l“n_2\234557E0I0|‘1;\ ‘567B@W0H1w2\234567R9\0|'\1§\

IIII-II-III ore:

N1
KST
N3

1The Old Town N
Circulator [OTC) s oTc
3 combination of
N3 and N4 from
King Street Station  KST
to Braddock Road, N3

N4 N4
N5 NS
Né& Né
N8 N8
® N9 NS
= nionN11 [ N1O/N11
3 N —— N
= N12 N12
9 Tm 7m
< 222 22a
2567 B 25b7
S
sy ts 102/100 ---------- . 10a/105
1t a
mosercng g 168 _
between Ballstan 23 23b Span and Frequency
frg:jrzuthem 28a 28a of 1I';‘ese mdu'%es is
unchanged from
292 Bhizsn S
20k 2ok for routings
NH2 1) 1 T T I INNNNNRNERENENNENDR v
e | | | | [ | [ [ [ [ [ [ | [ | | [] REX .
N22 N22
N23 N23
24 “The Old Town Circulator (OTC) is a combination of N3 and N4 N2
@ Nz7 from King Street to Braddock Road Stations. N27
g 7 7
z 7W ?25b runs every 15 minutes during peak times between Ballston 7W
g 4 and Southern Towers. !
> 8s 8s
c Bw 8w
8 8z 8z
o 10e 10e
o 11y 11y
21a 21a
21d 21d
22¢ 22c

Routes 7o/7p has
besn replaced by 22t
the N8 and the 28g

new 7y routing.

22f

[ [ | [ |
] 28g

JARRETT WALKER + AssociaTES FREQUENCY Emin  ERozmin 50 IR 20min 30 mio 80 min over 60

or better

45 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



6.0 / DASH Capital Budget Program

This section outlines the capital improvements that are planned to support the long-term viability and
growth of the DASH bus system. The primary source of capital funding for DASH is the City of
Alexandria’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP), however, ATC capital improvements are also funded
by other state and regional sources, such as the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation
(VDRPT) and the Northern Virginia Transportation Authority (NVTA). DASH and the City of Alexandria are
also in the process of establishing compliant status as an eligible FTA direct recipient, which would
provide opportunities for additional federal funding programs.

6.1/ FY 2024 — FY 2033 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

DASH relies upon capital funding from the City of Alexandria and regional funds from NVTA to fund
replacement buses, facility improvements, technology systems, and a wide range of other capital
projects. The City of Alexandria’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) covers a ten-year period and
operates on two-year update cycles with the current FY 2024 cycle representing a minor update. The
next full update for the city’s CIP is scheduled to occur in advance of FY 2025.

Based on the proposed FY 2024 — FY 2033 CIP, DASH is projecting $14.2 million in FY 2024 for fleet
replacements, fleet expansion/electrification, facility expansion, and DASH technology projects. Over
the full 10-year plan cycle, DASH is requesting a total of $146.2 million for the five capital projects.

Table 6-1 depicts a summary of the proposed FY 2024 CIP project funding requests and overall funding
levels for the entire FY 2024 — FY 2033 CIP life cycle.

6.2 / Fleet Replacement Plan

A detailed summary of the current Fleet Replacement Plan is included in Table 6-2. This table shows the
proposed replacement schedule for each of the active sub-fleets of buses, based on a useful life cycle of
12 years. In order to maintain a State of Good Repair and ensure that service is provided in a safe and
reliable manner, DASH must replace all buses that are more than 12 years old. Any buses that are
replaced within the yellow portion of the table are buses that are being kept in service beyond their
useful life, which represents a failure to maintain State of Good Repair.

DASH purchased ten (10) clean diesel replacement buses in 2022 which are set to be delivered in late
Summer 2023. These 10 buses will replace the next 10 buses due for retirement, which have reached
the end of their useful lifespan.

As outlined in Figure 6-1, DASH requesting $4.7 million in CIP funding for FY 2024 to help fund 15 bus
replacements, which include the replacement of ten Gillig hybrid electric buses that were purchased in
2012, and five trolleys that were purchased in 2011 and are due for retirement. DASH and the City are
applying for additional federal funding through the FY 2024 FTA Low/No Emissions Vehicle and Bus &
Bus Facilities grant programs, which could upgrade some of these replacement buses and trolleys from
clean diesel to 100% electric.

46 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Table 6-1 / FY 2024 — FY 2033 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Summary

FY 2024-2033 Total
. .. FY 2024 CIP .
Item Project Description . CIP Funding
Funding Request
Request
Bus Fleet Replacement. DASH is responsible for the planning, procurement, purchase, testing, acceptance and
maintenance of its active bus fleet. This program provides funding for the purchase of replacement transit buses
that enable DASH to operate fixed-route bus service throughout the City of Alexandria. It also includes funding
1 . ) . X . . $4,798,900 $105,115,700
for repairs and replacements related to vehicle batteries, and powertrain components. DASH will be working
with City staff and other stakeholders to coordinate the procurement, purchase and delivery of the replacement
buses that are funded by this project.
DASH Fleet Expansion & Electrification. This project provides for additional buses that are needed to maintain
2 |and expand bus service levels, consistent with the Alexandria Transit Vision Plan and the Alexandria Mobility $4,960,000 $29,190,300
Plan. This project will also facilitate the transition of the entire DASH fleet to 100% electric buses by 2037.
DASH Facility Expansion. The current DASH Facility has reached its maximum bus capacity and cannot accomodate
future fleet expansion. DASH has secured funding from multiple state and regional sources for a staged
3 implementation of e>_<panded bus storage capacity, which wi'II be integrated with.facility and %Jtility upgrades to 44,209,000 44,209,000
support a zero-emission subfleet. The City’s temporary parking arrangement for its overflow impound lot,
currently housed on the adjacent DASH bus expansion land, will ultimately need to be relocated. (Note: Most of
the funding appropriated for this project is from prior years).
DASH Electric Bus On-Route Charging. This project will provide funding for "on-route" bus charging stations that
will support the DASH electric bus fleet. On-route charging stations are installed at strategic bus terminals across
4  |the service area for shorter charging sessions that can be performed between trips during layover periods SO $4,849,600
without returning to the garage. These stations are critical for extending the battery range of electric buses so
that they can operate for longer periods of timewithout returning to the garage depot.
DASH Technologies. This project funds future technology initiatives that allow DASH to incorporate new
innovations into their day-to-day operations to improve ridership, cost efficiency and customer satisfaction. Such
5 |technologies include onboard equipment, transit signal prioritization, facility security technology upgrades, $255,745 $2,879,045
service planning analysis software tools, enhanced onboard video monitoring systems, advanced bus
maintenance diagnostic systems, or other elements to improve operations and customer experience.
TOTALS $14,223,645 $146,243,645

47 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




6.3/ Fleet Expansion

In order to maintain appropriate urban service levels for the City of Alexandria, increase service
frequency on productive existing routes, add new service in developing areas, and achieve an industry-
standard spare ratio, DASH must periodically increase its active bus fleet size. The current fleet includes
101 active vehicles. With a planned peak pull-out requirement of 77 buses in FY 2024, DASH will be able
to maintain its spare ratio at 31%, which is above the industry standard of 20%. Excluding trolleys, the
DASH fleet spare ratio is currently 28%.

DASH is planning the following fleet expansions over the next few years:

e FY 2022 - FY 2023 Smart Scale Funding. DASH secured roughly $11.1 million in state funding
through the Smart Scale program. Most of the funding for this project will be used towards the
facility expansion project described in Section 6.6, but the funds will also cover the purchase of
six expansion buses to be used towards improved DASH bus service in major development
corridors throughout the city. Though these buses are currently scoped as clean diesel buses,
DASH may apply for additional funding through the FTA Low/No Emission Vehicles grant
program to upgrade some or all of these buses to 100% electric propulsion. These six expansion
buses are scheduled for FY 2025 delivery and will support the service expansions described in
Section 5.3.

e FY 2024 - FY 2025 Smart Scale Funding. DASH was also able to secure $12 million in additional
Smart Scale funding for the purchase of 12 additional zero-emission expansion buses. These
buses are scheduled for purchase in FY 2024 and delivery by FY 2025. Due to unit cost increases
for buses, DASH will be working with DRPT staff to determine if additional funding will be
needed to purchase these buses or if the number of buses will need to be reduced.

With these planned expansions, DASH will be increasing its active fleet size from 101 buses to roughly
119 buses over the next five years. Though currently unfunded, DASH is also seeking to increase its fleet
size by 11 buses over the next three years through the City’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) to
increase service levels and maintain service reliability as more and more of the fleet transitions to 100%
electric propulsion.

The corresponding facility expansion that is needed to accommodate the growing DASH bus fleet is
summarized in Section 6.6.

48 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




Table 6-2 / Fleet Replacement Schedule.

DASH BUS FLEET REPLACEMENT SCHEDULE (FY 2024 - FY 2034)
Funding Year FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33

Delivery Year Type Qy  Retre Date = Fva6  FY27 Fv2s  FY29 FY30 FY3l FY32 FY33  FY34
2011 Gilligs Hybrid 10 2023

2011 Gilligs (Trolley) Hybrid 5 2022 |5

2012 Gilligs Hybrid 10 2024 10 L _________

2014 Gilligs Hybrid 7 2026 7

2015 Gilligs Hybrid 13 2027 13 :

2015 Gillig (Trolley) Hybrid 1 2027 N

2017 Gilligs Hybrid 6 2029 6 1

2018 Gilligs Clean Diesel =~ 14 2030 14

2019 New Flyers Clean Diesel 13 2031 13 :

2019 New Flyers Clean Diesel 8 2031 O
2020 Electric Buses (NF/Proterra) Electric 6 2032 6
2021 Electric Buses (NF/Proterra) Electric 8 2033

2023 Replacement Buses Clean Diesel 10 2035

Total Bus Retirements 15 0 7 14 0 6 14 21 0 6
Replacement Buses (Clean Diesel) 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Replacement Buses (Electric) 5 0 7 14 0 6 14 21 0 6
Total Replacement Buses 15 0 7 14 0 6 14 21 0 6
Expansion Buses (Clean Diesel) 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Expansion Buses (Electric) 6 2 ' 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Expansion Buses 6 16 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Bus Purchase 21 16 14 14 0 6 14 21 0 6
Total Active Fleet Size 107 123 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130

Note: Dashed line indicates the point at which each subfleet will reach the end of its useful life cycle (12 years). Buses must be replaced before the end of
their useful life cycle in order to maintain State of Good Repair (SGR) status. Numbers in yellow cells are representative of buses that will be kept beyond the
end of their useful life cycle.

49 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



6.4 / DASH Electric Bus Program

In 2018, the City and the ATC Board of Directors adopted a new fleet goal to transition to a 100% zero-
emission fleet by the year 2037. In 2020, DASH became the first transit agency in Northern Virginia to
operate electric buses when it took delivery of three New Flyer electric buses as part of the state’s VW
Mitigation Trust. The transition continued in 2021 with the arrival of three Proterra electric buses in
January, and eight more electric buses through the NVTA grant. These recent additions bring the total
DASH electric bus fleet size to 14 buses, which represents 14% of the active bus fleet. With additional
plans to increase the electric bus fleet, DASH expects that more than one-third of its bus fleet will be
100% electric by FY 2025.

This movement towards zero-emission buses is supported by the City of Alexandria’s 2021 Alexandria
Mobility Plan, and Eco-City Alexandria, which both seek to improve the quality of life and sustainable
transportation options.

Other DASH efforts towards a zero-emission fleet have included:

e DASH has modified its most recent Capital Improvement Program (CIP) funding requests to the
City of Alexandria to include funding for electric replacement buses as early as FY 2024. The
request assumes that the electric bus purchases would increase each year until FY 2026, at
which point all DASH replacement buses would be electric buses;

e DASH has secured multiple regional and state grant funding opportunities through Virginia
Smart Scale and NVTA (70% Funds) that will help cover the cost of facility expansions, upgrades,
infrastructure improvements, and additional electric buses, bus chargers, and maintenance
equipment over the next five years;

o DASH worked with the Center for Transportation and the Environment (CTE) to complete a Zero-
Emission Bus Feasibility Study in 2020 that determined that DASH and the City of Alexandria
were well-suited for electric bus technology; and

e In 2021, DASH completed the first phase of a consultant-led Zero-Emission Fleet Implementation
Plan to develop a plan for how the facility can be upgraded to accommodate a larger zero-
emission fleet. The second phase of this study will focus on the fleet transition is expected to be
completed by Spring 2023 with support from consultants at WSP, Inc.

e DASH is working with the City of Alexandria, local developers, and other local entities to identify
future locations for on-route bus charging stations that will allow DASH to operate a 100%
electric bus fleet in the future. Potential locations include Landmark Mall, Potomac Yard Metro,
Eisenhower Avenue Metro, Braddock Road Metro, Van Dorn Metro, Mark Center and NVCC
Alexandria.

e In 2022, DASH and the City of Alexandria were able to develop policies and programs that
established the City of Alexandria as an eligible Federal Transit Administration (FTA) recipient for
discretionary federal grant programs like “Low/No Emission Vehicles” and “Bus & Bus Facilities”.
These programs provide funding opportunities for transit agencies like DASH that are seeking to
transition to electric buses and could help to accelerate the transformation.

50 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




The above programs will allow DASH to continue to work towards it goal of a 100% fleet transition to
battery electric buses by 2037.

6.5 / DASH Facility Expansion

As part of the $11 million Smart Scale project mentioned above, DASH has secured funding to expand its
existing garage facility to increase vehicle capacity from 96 buses to 134 buses to meet anticipated
service demand in the coming decades. The existing William B. Hurd Transit Facility was opened in 2009
but has since exceeded its maximum bus capacity.

Upon completion of the current William B. Hurd Transit Facility, the land located directly adjacent to the
west of the facility was identified and committed for DASH to expand onto for future growth as needed.
This parcel, which is currently occupied by a temporary impound lot, will be regraded and integrated
into the existing facility. The design process for the facility expansion began in late 2021 and is expected
to be completed by Spring 2023. As outlined by the Zero-Emission Bus Implementation Plan (Phase 1),
the facility expansion is expected to include up to 40 electric bus chargers.

Construction is scheduled to begin as early as late FY 2024, and the new expanded facility would likely
open by FY 2026.

Source: DASH Zero Emission Fleet Implementation Phase | —JJune 2021.

51 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




6.6 / Technology Improvements

Over the last few years, DASH has continued to leverage various technologies to improve its customer
experience, enhance passenger safety, collect better performance data and gain internal efficiencies.
Recent projects have included Automated Passenger Counter (APC) retrofits, a web-based ridership data
analysis tool (Hopthru) and a web-based dashboard tool for better performance data reporting
(Geckoboard).

Additional technology projects that are either ongoing or will be started in FY 2024 are listed below:

e Scheduling Software. DASH has identified a major need for new, upgraded scheduling
software. The current system that we are using is designed for smaller agencies with less
complexity to their route networks and labor rules. With the launch of the new Alexandria
Transit Vision (ATV) Network in 2021 and the more complex labor rules from the new Collective
Bargaining Agreement, DASH needs a more advanced software solution that is easier to use and
more reliable. Procurement and implementation efforts for this project are ongoing and the
new platform is expected to be implemented by mid-2023.

e Electric Bus Charge Management Pilot. DASH is requesting FY 2024 DRPT “Demonstration
Project” grant funding to implement a Charge Management System Pilot project that would
allow DASH to monitor electric bus charging status of individual buses and actively manage the
distributing of electrical charging across multiple charging stations to better align with real-time
service needs. The system would include the installation of hardware equipment on the
charging dispensers as well as software that would be used by DASH staff in the Operations,
Maintenance and Planning Departments to better understand bus charging profiles and to
deploy the electric buses more efficiently. DASH would be the first transit agency in the state to
deploy this type of platform, which will improve reliability, and reduce charging costs by
decreasing the number of buses charging during peak utility pricing periods. Furthermore, this
technology will enable the DASH team to support the most number of battery electric buses
with the least amount of charging infrastructure, to minimize capital needs and achieve full fleet
conversion.

e Automated Wheelchair Securement Pilot. DASH is applying for an FY 2024 DRPT
“Demonstration Project” grant to install a state-of-the-art automated wheelchair securement
system on up to five DASH buses. This system is designed to allow passengers with mobility
devices to safely secure themselves in the designated ADA seating area without operator
involvement. When compared with current manual securement practices, this system would
reduce potential liability for accidents due to operators incorrectly securing mobility devices and
speed up the boarding process to reduce overall travel times and improve overall service
reliability. Lastly, this system will also eliminate the need for close contact between operators
and passengers which greatly reduces the risk of viral transmission or other conflicts. If this pilot
is successful, DASH would potentially begin ordering this system on future bus orders.

e Bus Speed & Reliability Data Improvements. DASH is exploring technology platforms that will
provide better visibility into bus speeds and reliability metrics. This will allow DASH and City staff
to better understand where schedule adjustments and street or stop improvements could be
implemented to prioritize buses over other modes and improve speeds and reliability.

52 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




e Transit Signal Prioritization. DASH and the City of Alexandria T&ES staff have been working
over the last five years to install Transit Signal Prioritization (TSP) technology at key intersections
on transit corridors throughout the City. This technology enables traffic signals to sense when a
bus is approaching so that it can extend the green phase to allow the bus to move through more
quickly. This leads to increased bus speeds and greater service reliability, particularly for bus
routes that operate on more congested corridors.

To date, the City of Alexandria has installed TSP technology at 54 intersections and has plans to
expand to most intersections used by Metrobus or DASH buses by 2026. DASH buses are
currently benefiting from TSP at 28 intersections, including 18 on the Duke Street corridor and
10 on the King Street Corridor. By the end of FY 2023, several additional intersections along
Beauregard Street and Van Dorn Street are anticipated to be available for DASH buses. A map of
TSP locations is included as Figure 6-1.

Over half of the of the DASH revenue fleet (61 buses) are currently equipped with TSP, including

all new DASH buses purchased since 2018, and all 40- and 60-foot buses. All new bus builds will
include TSP equipment, and additional retrofits will be completed as funding becomes available.

Figure 6-1 / Transit Signal Prioritization (TSP) Location in City of Alexandria

ey
N ]

/]
.}l'l!l i

g Miles Il
0 025 04 1 i \-._-!“
This map shows location of Transit Signal Priol on in Alexandria.
Intersections marked as "Green" have both cellular and wireless (radio)

TSP Legend communications, alllowing both WMATA and DASH to use them.
" Intersections marked "Yellow" have only cellular communications. so only
‘- DASH Accessible ()  WMATA Only WMATA can use them.

53 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




6.7/ Other Capital Outlay Items

The FY 2024 ATC proposed operating budget also includes capital funding for regular equipment
replacement. This funding will be used for the replacement and repair of items such as heavy-duty
maintenance equipment, support/non-revenue vehicles, building security and surveillance systems, and
network equipment.

54 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




7.0 / Public Outreach & Feedback

The public comment period for the FY 2024 ATC Transit Development Plan will be conducted from
March 8 to April 14, 2023. All public feedback received during the comment period will be reviewed and
considered by staff. All written comments and letters will be included in the appendices of the final plan
document that is presented to the ATC Board of Directors as they consider final plan adoption.

A summary of the public outreach efforts and activities that will be conducted is outlined below:

o TDP Community Meetings. DASH will conduct two virtual community meetings on March 28
and April 6 to provide information on the proposed changes and receive any questions or
feedback. The recordings of these meetings will be posted on the DASH Facebook and YouTube
pages for later viewing.

o TDP Public Hearing. DASH will conduct a special TDP Public Hearing before its April 12th Board
of Directors meeting.

o Pop-Up Events at Key Transit Centers. DASH staff will conduct a series of nine “pop-up” events
at key transit locations around the city, designed to solicit additional awareness, engagement
and feedback related to the plan. These pop-ups will be scheduled in the days leading up to the
community meetings so that any interested customers can attend the meetings to learn more or
provide more detailed feedback.

o On-Board Posters. Posters will be installed on all DASH buses in English, Spanish, and Amharic
to alert riders of the proposed service changes and the opportunities to provide feedback.

o DASH Website Updates. The DASH website includes extensive information on the FY 2024 TDP,
including the full TDP document at www.dashbus.com/tdp. The page will also include

information on how community feedback can be provided.

o E-Blast Announcements. DASH will send several emails to the DASH e-mail update list about
the proposed FY 2024 TDP outreach efforts. This list currently includes over 8,500 subscribers.

o Social Media. DASH staff will create social media posts related to the FY 2024 TDP process and
proposed changes on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and LinkedIn.

All public comments that were provided during the outreach process are included as Appendix A.

55 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)




APPENDIX A

Public Comments & Letters for FY 2024 ATC Transit Development Plan

(PUBLIC COMMENTS TO BE ADDED TO THIS SECTION UPON COMPLETION OF OUTREACH)

56 | FY2024 — FY2029 ATC Transit Development Plan (DRAFT)



Attachment I1
Stockholders Meeting Minutes



b TRANS),

Q_l\y\;o CO% - -
iwizs Alexandria Transit Company
o I
DASH ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS
MEETING MINUTES
February 14, 2023

The Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Alexandria Transit Company (ATC) was held on Tuesday,
February 14, 2023, at 6:30 pm in the Council Chambers (301 King Street, Alexandria, Virginia, 22314) and
electronically. Members of City Council, the ATC Board, and staff participated either in person or from a remote
location through a video conference call on Zoom.

Board members present: David Kaplan, Matt Harris, Hillary Orr, Murat Omay, Ajashu Thomas, Brandi Collins
(participated electronically)

Staff members present: Josh Baker, Martin Barna, Beth Reveles (participated electronically)
Stockholders present: Mayor Justin Wilson, Vice Mayor Amy Jackson, Councilman Canek Aguirre,
Councilmember Sarah Bagley, Councilman John Taylor Chapman, Councilwoman Alyia Gaskins, Councilman R.

Kirk McPike

Meeting Minutes

Mayor Justin Wilson explained that the ATC Stockholders meeting would commence, and he turned the meeting
over to the ATC Chair David Kaplan.

Agenda Item #1 — Chair’s Welcome and Introductions
Chair Kaplan called the meeting to order at 6:57 pm.
Agenda Item #2 — Slate of Directors (Consideration of Approval)

The Chair asked if there was a motion to approve the Slate of Directors. A motion was made by Mayor Wilson
and seconded by Councilman Chapman. Councilman Aguirre recused himself from the vote. There was no
further discussion, and the motion passed with six voting yes and one recusal.

Agenda Item #3 — Qutside Auditor (Consideration of Approval)

The Chair introduced the final order of business which was consideration of approval of the outside auditor. He
explained that the ATC uses the same auditor as the City. He asked if there was a motion to adopt the outside
auditor. A motion was made by Councilman Chapman and seconded by Councilmember Bagley. There was no
further discussion, and the motion passed seven to zero.

Agenda Item #4 — General Manager’s Annual Report
Chair Kaplan provided a brief review of DASH’s accomplishments throughout the past year.

e DASH is the only major transit agency in the DC region that has returned to and surpassed pre-COVID
ridership levels. It is due both to free fares as well as the City’s investments made in building out the New
DASH Network by increasing frequent all-day service in high demand corridors.

e DASH recorded over 380,000 boardings in September 2022, which was the most for any month in the last
seven years.

o These ridership increases are a combination of existing riders who are riding more often, and new riders
who had not used DASH prior the new network and free fares (71% of previous customers riding more,
22% of riders have started since Sept. *21).




e InJanuary 2023, the newly extended trips on Line 30 carried an average of nearly 400 passengers per
weekday, the majority of whom are traveling between the Duke Street Corridor and Old Town. DASH
expects this figure to increase in the warmer spring months and will be conducting a more detailed
assessment of the Line 30 improvements at that time.

e Survey also indicates that more than 80% of low-income passengers are riding DASH more now; 26% of
current low-income riders have started riding DASH since the new network and free fares were launched.

e New DASH Network now provides access to frequent, all-day bus service, seven days per week, to 81% of
the city’s low-income residents, 78% of persons of color, and 69% of seniors.

e Line 30 improvements were implemented in Fall 2022 to enhance connectivity between West Alexandria
and Old Town via the Duke Street corridor.

o DASH and the City have recently completed a Bus Stop Inventory Project and are undertaking several
significant projects in FY 2023 designed to improve bus stop accessibility and increase the number of bus
stops with shelters and benches.

o 43% of the bus stops do not meet ADA accessibility requirements, mostly due to a non-compliant

ADA boarding area.

18% of the stops are located where parked cars are permitted to block the boarding area.

22% of the stops do not have a shelter to protect riders from the elements.

54% of the stops have a bench.

7% of the stops have a bulb out or a curb extension to promote easy boarding.

O O O O

The bus stop survey and inventory were largely conducted by Hillary Orr and the T&ES staff. From this, we now
have a base line to work from in making improvements. T&ES and DASH staff will work collaboratively in finding
solutions to the bus stops situation. Chair Kaplan asked to keep bus stops top of mind to meet the needs of the
community and to continue to improve DASH service.

The Chair then recognized General Manager & CEO Josh Baker.

Mr. Baker highlighted the following:

e Ongoing development of expanded DASH facility and charging infrastructure.

e Fleet replacement and expansion; still on track for 2037 electrification goal.

e Fleetwide Automated Passenger Counting (APC) technology. This will help in better understanding the
movement of passengers, the usage of the system, and which bus stop locations they are using: boarding
and alighting.

e Pursuing fleet replacement/expansion funding through 1-395 Commuter Choice.

e Increasing bus sizes to accommodate growing ridership.

Mr. Baker reviewed upcoming projects/items:
e Opening of Potomac Yard Metro Station & Yellow Line
e Facility Expansion—challenges with charging infrastructure
e Duke Street Transitway
e Federal Grant opportunities for Capital Projects related to Electrification
e Expanded Key Performance Indicator “DASHboards”
e Bus stop Improvements
e Landmark Mall Transit Center
e Electric Bus Charge Management
e New Collective Bargaining Agreement

Councilman Aguirre stated that some bus stops have inadequate lighting which should be improved.

Councilman Chapman asked about DASH’s fiscal strategy for the next five and ten years to ensure adequate
funding.

Councilmember Bagley feels that DASH service is very safe and that should be included in marketing materials.
She also suggested that DASH quantify the effects of the electrification of the fleet and include that metric in
marketing materials, e.g., the number of cars taken off the road and the reduction in emissions.




Agenda Item #5 — Other Business

At 7:24 pm, the Chair asked if there was a motion to adjourn the meeting. A motion was made by Councilman
Chapman and seconded by Councilman Aguirre. A vote was called, and the motion passed seven to zero.

Minutes respectfully submitted by:
Beth Reveles

Secretary to the Board

Alexandria Transit Company




